



# NATIONAL PENSION SYSTEM (NPS)

## **OFFER DOCUMENT**

(FOR BOTH TIER-I AND TIER -II)



### NATIONAL PENSION SYSTEM

#### THE REGULATOR

Pension Fund Regulatory & Development Authority

#### THE NPS TRUST

### THE CENTRAL RECORDKEEPING AGENCY (CRA)

National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL)

### THE CUSTODIAN

Stock Holding Corporation of India Limited

### THE TRUSTEE BANK

Bank of India

### THE PENSION FUNDS (in alphabetical order)

- ICICI Prudential Pension Funds Management Company Limited
- IDFC Pension Fund Management Company Limited
- · Kotak Mahindra Pension Fund Limited
- Reliance Capital Pension Fund Limited
- SBI Pension Funds Private Limited
- UTI Retirement Solutions Limited

### POINTS OF PRESENCE (in alphabetical order)

- Abhipra Capital Limited
- Alankit Assignments Ltd
- Allahabad Bank
- Axis Bank Ltd.
- · Bajaj Capital Ltd.
- Central Bank of India
- Citibank N.A
- Computer Age Management Services Pvt. Ltd.
- ICICI Bank Limited
- ICICI Securities Ltd
- IDBI Bank Limited
- IL &FS Securities Services Ltd
- India Post NPS Nodal Office
- Integrated Securities Ltd
- Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited
- Marwadi Shares and Finance Limited
- Muthoot Finance Limited
- Oriental Bank of Commerce

- Reliance Capital Limited
- State Bank of Bikaner and Jaipur
- State Bank of Hyderabad
- State Bank of India
- State Bank of Mysore
- State Bank of Patiala
- State Bank of Travancore
- · Steel City Securities Ltd
- Stock Holding Corporation Of India Ltd
- Syndicate Bank
- The South Indian Bank Ltd.
- Union Bank of India
- UTI Asset Management Company Limited
- UTI Technology Services Ltd.
- Yes Bank Ltd
- · Zen Securities Limited

### APPLICANT SHOULD NOTE THAT:

- This Offer Document sets forth concisely the information about NPS that an applicant ought to know. Applicant should carefully read the Offer Document.
- This Offer Document remains effective until a material change occurs. Material changes will be notified by Pension Fund Regulatory and Development Authority (PFRDA) to all subscribers.
- PFRDA has been established to promote old age income security by establishing, developing and regulating pension funds, to protect the interests of subscribers to schemes of pension funds and for matters connected therewith or incidental thereto.
- NPS, regulated by PFRDA, is a defined contribution pension system which is now being offered on voluntary basis to all citizens of India other than Government employees covered by NPS.

## **Table of Contents**

Abbreviations and Definitions	3
Abbreviations	3
Definitions	3
NPS Features	4
Who can join?	4
Who cannot join?	4
How to enroll in the NPS?	4
How much does a subscriber need to contribute?	4
What are the benefits of joining the NPS?	5
When can a subscriber withdraw the amount?	5
Tax Benefits	5
What investment choice does the subscriber have?	5
Charges	7
Other Matters	8
Power to make guidelines and give directions	8
Investment Guidelines	8
NPS Architecture	8
PFRDA	8
NPS Intermediaries	9
NPS Trust	9
Functions of NPS Trust	10
Services provided by CRA to Subscribers	10
Functions of Trustee Bank	10
Functions of POPs	11
Services to Subscribers	12
Terms & Conditions	13
Risks	13
Explanatory note on specific risks in debt markets and capital markets Risks associated with Debt / Money Markets (i.e. Markets in which	14
Interest bearing Securities or Discounted Instruments are traded) Risks associated with Capital Markets or Equity Markets (i.e. Markets in	14
which Equity Shares or Equity oriented instruments are issued and traded)	15
NPS Tier -II Account	15
Table summarizing the main features of Tier-II account	16
Swavalamban Scheme: Operational Guidelines	17

## **Abbreviations and Definitions**

In this Offer Document, the following words and expressions shall have the meaning specified below, unless the context otherwise requires:

### **Abbreviations**

Annuity Service Provider
Centralised Grievance Management System
Central Recordkeeping Agency
Defined Contribution
Grievance Redressal Cell
Grievance Redressal Mechanism
Investment Management Agreement
Initial Public Offer
Know Your Customer
National Pension System
Normal Retirement Age
Pension Funds/Pension Fund Managers
Pension Fund Regulatory and Development Authority
Point of Presence
Point of Presence – Service Provider (Authorized branches of POP for NPS)
Permanent Retirement Account
Permanent Retirement Account Number
Trustee Bank
Foreign Exchange Management Act

### **Definitions**

A 1: 1.1 BLANC	11 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Applicable NAV	Unless stated otherwise in the Offer Document, 'Applicable NAV' is the Net Asset Value at the close of a Working Day.
Applicant	An individual who has expressed interest in joining NPS and has duly completed all formalities.
Custodian	Agency responsible for holding assets of the NPS Trust. Refers to the Stockholding Corporation of India Limited (SHCIL)
IMA	Investment Management Agreement, entered into between NPS Trust and the Pension Funds .
Offer Document	This document, issued by PFRDA, making an offer to potential applicants to subscribe to NPS.
RBI	Reserve Bank of India, established under the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
Subscriber	An individual who has become a member of the NPS
Unit holder	Subscriber is also referred to as unit holder with respect to the units he/she owns.
Trust Deed	The Trust Deed entered into between the NPS Trust and PFRDA, as amended up to date, or as may be amended from time to time.
Trust Fund	The corpus of the Trust and all property belonging to and/or vested in the Trustees.
Working Day	A day other than any of the following (i) Saturday or Sunday (ii) a day on which banks including the Reserve Bank of India are closed for business or clearing and (iii) a day on which the Purchase and Redemption of Units is suspended.

### **NPS Features**

Pension Fund Regulatory and Development Authority (PFRDA) has been established by the Government of India, Ministry of Finance vide Notification F.No.5/7/2003-ECB & PR dated 10th October, 2003 to promote old age income security. The Government authorized PFRDA vide Ministry of Finance, Department of Financial Services letter No. 11(11)/2008-PR dated 29th July 2008 to extend NPS on a voluntary basis to all citizens of India including workers of the unorganized sector.

NPS is now available to all citizens of India with effect from May 1, 2009, other than Government employees already covered under NPS.

Under NPS following two types of accounts will be available to you:

- Tier-I account: You shall contribute your savings for retirement into this non-withdrawable account.
- Tier-II account: This is a voluntary savings facility. You will be free to withdraw your savings from this account whenever you wish.

While Tier-I account is available from May 1, 2009, the facility of Tier II account is offered from December 1, 2009 to all citizens of India including Government employees mandatorily covered by NPS.

The details mentioned in this offer document pertain to both Tier-I & Tier II accounts.

For details of Tier-II please see page - 15

### Who can join?

A citizen of India, whether resident or non-resident, subject to the following conditions:

- You should be between 18 60 years of age as on the date of submission of his/her application to the POP/ POP-SP.
- You should comply with the Know Your Customer (KYC) norms as detailed in the Subscriber Registration
  Form. The Subscriber Registration form attached with this Offer Document should be duly filled-in by
  the applicant and all terms and conditions mentioned therein should be duly complied with. All the
  documents required for KYC compliance need to be mandatorily submitted.

### Who cannot join?

The following applicants cannot join:

- Undischarged insolvent: Individuals who are not granted an 'order of discharge' by a court.
- Individuals of unsound mind: An individual is said to be of unsound mind for the purposes of making a contract if, at the time when he makes it, he is incapable of understanding it and of forming a rational judgment regarding its effect upon his/ her self-interest.
- Pre-existing account holders under NPS.

### How to enroll in the NPS?

To enroll in the NPS, you need to submit the attached Composite Registration Form (UOS-S1) to the POP-SP of your choice. The list of POP – SPs is available on the PFRDA website www.pfrda.org.in, on the CRA website www.npscra.nsdl.co.in and on the website of the concerned POP. You may also contact the POPs listed at page11 of this offer document.

NRIs should have an account with a bank based in India to open an account under NPS. The contributions made by the NRI would be subject to regulatory requirements as prescribed by RBI from time to time and FEMA requirements.

After the account is opened, CRA shall mail a "Welcome Kit" to you containing the subscriber's unique Permanent Retirement Account Number (PRAN) Card and the complete information provided by the subscriber in the Subscriber Registration form. This account number will be the primary means of identifying and operating the account.

You will also receive a Telephone Password (TPIN) which can be used to access your account on the call centre number (1-800-222080). You will also be provided an Internet Password (IPIN) for accessing your account on the CRA Website (www.npscra.nsdl.co.in) on a 24X7 basis.

### How much does a subscriber need to contribute?

### For Tier-I

You are required to make your first contribution at the time of applying for registration at any POP - SP. You are required to make contributions subject to the following conditions:

- Minimum amount per contribution Rs 500
- Minimum contribution per year Rs 6,000
- · Minimum number of contributions -01 per year

Over and above the mandated limit of a minimum of 1 contribution, you may decide on the frequency of the contributions across the year as per your convenience.

For details of contribution to Tier -II refer to page 15.

- The subscriber can contribute the amount through cash, local cheque, demand draft or Electronic Clearing System (ECS) at his/her chosen POP-SP.
- · No outstation cheques shall be accepted.

There will be a time lag between the time you deposit Cash/ Demand draft/cheque/ Electronic Clearing System (ECS) with the POP-SP and the time of credit of units to the PRA, which may range upto 15 working days at the time of initial registration and upto 7 working days for subsequent contributions. PFRDA will impose penalties on intermediaries in case of delay beyond this period.

### What are the benefits of joining the NPS?

- It is voluntary- NPS is open to every Indian citizen. You can choose the amount you want to set aside
  and save every year.
- It is simple- all you have to do is to open an account with any one of the POPs and get a PRAN.
- It is flexible- You can choose your own investment option and Pension Fund Manager and see your money grow.
- It is portable- You can operate your account from anywhere in the country, even if you change your city, job or your pension fund manager.
- It is regulated- NPS is regulated by PFRDA, with transparent investment norms and regular monitoring and performance review of fund managers by NPS Trust.
- On attaining the Normal Retirement Age (NRA) of 60 years You will be required to compulsorily annuitize at least 40% of your pension wealth and the remaining 60% can be withdrawn as a lump sum or in a phased manner; in case, you opt for a phased withdrawal:
  - Minimum 10% of the pension wealth should be withdrawn every year.
  - · Any amount lying to the credit at the age 70 should be compulsorily withdrawn in lump sum.
- Withdraw any time before 60 years of age— In such case, you will have to compulsorily annuitize 80% of your accumulated pension wealth. The remaining 20% can be withdrawn as a lump sum.

### When can a subscriber withdraw the amount?

Vesting Criteria	Benefit
At any point in time before 60 years of age	You would be required to invest at least 80% of the pension wealth to purchase a life annuity from any IRDA – regulated life insurance company. Rest 20% of the pension wealth may be withdrawn as lump sum.
On attaining the Age of 60 years and upto 70 years of age	At exit you would be required to invest minimum 40 percent of your accumulated savings (pension wealth) to purchase a life annuity from any IRDA-regulated life insurance company.
	You may choose to purchase an annuity for an amount greater than 40 percent. The remaining pension wealth can either be withdrawn in a lump sum on attaining the age of 60 or in a phased manner, between age 60 and 70, at the option of the subscriber.
Death due to any cause	In such an unfortunate event, option will be available to the nominee to receive 100% of the NPS pension wealth in lump sum. However, if the nominee wishes to continue with the NPS, he/she shall have to subscribe to NPS individually after following due KYC procedure.

### **Tax Benefits**

Tax benefits would be applicable as per the Income Tax Act, 1961 as amended from time to time.

### What investment choice does the subscriber have?

The NPS offers you two approaches to invest your money:

- Active choice Individual Funds (Asset Class E, Asset Class C, and Asset Class G)
- · Auto choice Lifecycle Fund

### **Active choice - Individual Funds**

You will have the option to actively decide as to how your NPS pension wealth is to be invested in the following three options:

Asset Class E - investments in predominantly equity market instruments.

Asset Class C- investments in fixed income instruments other than Government securities.

Asset Class G - investments in Government securities.

Detailed investment guidelines are provided in the offer document under section "other matters"

You can choose to invest your entire pension wealth in C or G asset classes and upto a maximum of 50% in equity (Asset class E). You can also distribute your pension wealth across E, C and G asset classes, subject to such conditions as may be prescribed by PFRDA. In case you decide to actively exercise your choice about investment options, you shall be required to indicate your choice of Pension Fund Manager (PFM) from among the six Pension Fund Managers (PFMs) appointed by PFRDA. In case you do not indicate any choice of PFMs, your form shall not be accepted by the POP-SP.

While exercising an Active Choice, remember that your investment allocation is one of the most important factors affecting the growth of your pension wealth. If you prefer this "hands-on" approach, keep the following points in mind:

- Consider both risk and return. The E Asset class has higher potential returns than the G asset class, but it also carries the risk of investment losses. Investing entirely in the G asset class may not give you high returns but is a safer option.
- You can reduce your overall risk by diversifying your investment. The three individual asset classes offer a broad range of investment options, it is good not to put "all your eggs in one basket."
- The amount of risk you can sustain depends upon your investment time horizon. The more time you have before you need to withdraw from your account, the more is the risk you can take. (This is because early losses can be offset by later gains.)
- Periodically review your investment choices. Check the distribution of your account balance among the
  funds to make sure that the mix you chose is still appropriate for your situation. If not, rebalance your
  account to get the allocation you want.

### **Auto choice - Lifecycle Fund**

NPS offers an easy option for those participants who do not have the required knowledge to manage their NPS investments. In case you are unable/unwilling to exercise any choice as regards asset allocation, your funds will be invested in accordance with the Auto Choice option. You will, however, be required to indicate your choice of PFM. In case you do not do so, your form shall not be accepted by the POP-SP.

In this option, the investments will be made in a life-cycle fund. Here, the fraction of funds invested across three asset classes will be determined by a pre-defined portfolio. At the lowest age of entry (18 years), the auto choice will entail investment of 50% of pension wealth in "E" Class, 30% in "C" Class and 20% in "G" Class. These ratios of investment will remain fixed for all contributions until the participant reaches the age of 36. From age 36 onwards, the weight in "E" and "C" asset class will decrease annually and the weight in "G" class will increase annually till it reaches 10% in "E", 10% in "C" and 80% in "G" class at age.

Like the active choice, you must choose one PFM under the auto choice.

### **Table for Lifecycle Fund\***

Age	Asset Class E	Asset Class C	Asset Class G
Up to 35 years	50%	30%	20%
36 years	48%	29%	23%
37 years	46%	28%	26%
38 years	44%	27%	29%
39 years	42%	26%	32%
40 years	40%	25%	35%
41 years	38%	24%	38%
42 years	36%	23%	41%
43 years	34%	22%	44%
44 years	32%	21%	47%
45 years	30%	20%	50%
46 years	28%	19%	53%
47 years	26%	18%	56%
48 years	24%	17%	59%

Age	Asset Class E	Asset Class C	Asset Class G
49 years	22%	16%	62%
50 years	20%	15%	65%
51 years	18%	14%	68%
52 years	16%	13%	71%
53 years	14%	12%	74%
54 years	12%	11%	77%
55 years	10%	10%	80%

<sup>\*</sup>In case of Auto Choice, reallocation among the asset classes shall take place on the date of birth of the subscriber.

Net Asset Value (NAV) will be released on a regular basis so that you may be able to take informed decisions.

The system for scheme preference change has been made available with effect from 1st June, 2010. The window for scheme change preference shall remain open throughout the year. The subscriber shall be allowed to excercise the choice only once, at any time during the financial year.

Neither the Active Choice nor the Auto Choice provide assured returns.

## **Charges**

NPS offers Indian citizens a low cost option for planning their retirement. A 0.0009%\* fee (based on assets under management) for managing your wealth, makes pension funds under NPS perhaps the world's lowest cost money managers. Following are the charges under NPS:

Intermediary	Charge head	Service charges*	Method of Deduction
CRA	PRA Opening charges	Rs. 50	Through cancellation
	Annual PRA Maintenance cost per account	Rs. 280¹	of units
	Charge per transaction	Rs. 6 <sup>1</sup>	
POP (Maximum Permissible	Initial subscriber registration and contribution upload	Rs. 40	To be collected upfront
Charge for each subscriber)	Any subsequent transactions <sup>2</sup>	Rs. 20	
Trustee Bank	Per transaction emanating from a RBI location	zero	Through NAV deduction
	Per transaction emanating from a non- RBI location <sup>4</sup>	Rs. 15	
Custodian⁵	Asset Servicing charges	0.0075% p.a for Electronic	Through NAV
(On asset value in custody)		segment & 0.05% p.a. for Physical segment	deduction
PFM charges	Investment Management Fee <sup>3</sup>	0.0009% p.a.	Through NAV deduction

<sup>\*</sup>Service tax and other levies, as applicable, will be levied as per the existing tax laws. There are no additional CRA charges for the maintenance of Tier –II account. For a detailed comparison of Tier-I & Tier –II, refer to Page16.

- 1 The number of accounts in CRA reaches 30 lakh the service charges, exclusive of Service Tax and other taxes as applicable, will be reduced further to Rs 250 (Rupees two hundred and fifty only) for annual PRA maintenance per account and Rs. 4 (Rupees four only) for charges per transaction. CRA's charge for maintenance of your permanent retirement would include charges for maintenance of electronic information of the balances in your PRA, for incorporating changes to PRA details received by the CRA in electronic form, for sending annual account information once a year in printed form etc.
- 2 These include
  - 1. Regular subscriber's contribution.
  - 2. Change in subscriber details.
  - 3. Change of investment scheme/fund manager
  - 4. Processing of withdrawal request
  - 5. Processing of request for subscriber shifting

- 6. Issuance of printed Account statement,
- Any other subscriber services as may be prescribed by PFRDA
- 3 The Investment Management Fee is inclusive of all transaction related charges such as brokerage, transaction cost etc. except custodian charges and applicable taxes. The Investment Management Fee is calculated on the average monthly assets managed by the pension fund.
- 4 Trustee Bank charges are not charged to subscriber directly. Transaction refers to the entire chain of activities starting from receipt of electronic instructions/ receipt of physical instrument to transfer of funds to the designated PFMs. On the outflow side, it would include all activities leading to credit of beneficiary account.
- 5 Charges for Demat/Remat, Receipt of shares & SEBI charges are extra.

### Other Matters

### Power to make guidelines and give directions

PFRDA may, from time to time, issue such directions and Guidelines to NPS intermediaries as may be necessary for protecting the interests of the subscribers.

### **Investment Guidelines**

The PF will manage 3 separate schemes, each investing in a different asset class, being:

Asset class E (equity market instruments) – The investment in this asset class would be subject to a cap of 50%. This asset class will be invested in index funds that replicate the portfolio of either BSE Sensitive index or NSE Nifty 50 index. These schemes invest in securities in the same weightage comprising an index.

**Asset class G (Government Securities)** – This asset class will be invested in Central Government bonds and State Government bonds.

**Asset class C (credit risk bearing fixed income instruments)** – This asset class will be invested in the following instruments:

- (i) Liquid Funds of AMCs regulated by SEBI with the following filters:
  - AMCs are SEBI regulated, with Average total assets under management (AUM) for the most recent six-month period of, at least, Rs.5000 crores.
  - All assets that are permitted for investment into liquid funds by SEBI.
- (ii) Fixed Deposits of scheduled commercial banks with following filters:
  - Net worth of at least Rs.500 crores and a track record of profitability in the last three years.
  - Capital adequacy ratio of not less than 9% in the last three years. Net NPA of under 5% as a percentage of net advances in the last year.
- (iii) Debt securities with maturity of not less than three years tenure issued by Bodies Corporate including scheduled commercial banks and public financial institutions [as defined in Section 4 (A) of the Companies Act].

Provided that at least 75% of the investment in this category is made in instruments having an investment grade rating from at least one credit rating agency.

- (iv) Credit Rated Public Financial Institutions/PSU Bonds
- (v) Credit Rated Municipal Bonds/Infrastructure Bonds

### NPS ARCHITECTURE

### **PFRDA**

PFRDA is the prudential Regulator for the NPS. PFRDA was established by the Government of India, Ministry of Finance, vide Notification F.No.5/7/2003-ECB & PR dated 10th October, 2003 to promote old age income security. PFRDA has been authorized by the Central Government vide Notification F.No.1 (6)2007-PR dated 14th November 2008 to appoint/establish various intermediaries in the system such as Central Recordkeeping Agency (CRA), Pension Funds (PFs), Points of Presence, Trustee Bank, NPS Trust, Custodian, etc. for operationalizing the NPS roll out to unorganized sector subscribers.

### The present constitution of the PFRDA Board is as under:

 SH. YOGESH AGARWAL CHAIRMAN PH- (D)-91-11-26897937

### 2. SMT. MADHULIKA P. SUKUL

PART-TIME MEMBER PH-(D)-91-11-23093283

### 3. SH. TARUN BAJAJ

PART-TIME MEMBER PH-(D)-91-11-23747507

### **OFFICIALS OF THE AUTHORITY:**

### 1. SMT. RANI S. NAIR

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR PH-(D)-91-11-26130189

### 2. SH. P.K. TIWARI

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR PH-91-11-26897939

### 3. SH. KAMAL KR. CHAUDHRY

CHIEF GENERAL MANAGER PH-(D)-91-11-26897942

### 4. SH. PUSKAL UPADHYAY

GENERAL MANAGER PH-(D)-91-11-26130568

### 5. SMT. DEEPA KOTNIS

GENERAL MANAGER PH-(D)-91-11-26897934

### **NPS Intermediaries**

### **NPS Trust**

PFRDA has established the **NPS Trust** under Indian Trust Act, 1882 and appointed NPS Board of Trustees in whom the administration of the "National Pension System" vests under Indian Law. The Trust is responsible for taking care of the funds under the NPS. The Trust holds an account with the Bank of India and this bank is designated as the NPS Trustee Bank.

### **Trustees**

### **Names and Addresses**

### MR. YOGENDRA NARAIN (Formerly Secretary General Rajya Sabha)

CHAIRMAN TRUSTEE

H. No.7, Shivalik Houses,

Sector- 61, Near Sai Baba Mandir,

Noida - 201 301

### MR. N. R. RAYALU (Former Deputy Comptroller and Auditor General of India)

**TRUSTEE** 

C-7/1, M.S. Flats,

Sector - 13, R. K. Puram,

New Delhi - 110 066

### MR. G.N. BAJPAI (Former Chairman, SEBI)

**TRUSTEE** 

131, Shaan Apartments,

K.D. Marg, Opp. Kirti College,

Prabha Devi,

Mumbai- 400 028.

### MR. NARESH DAYAL (Former Secretary to Government of India)

**TRUSTEE** 

C-II/83, Moti Bagh-I,

New Delhi

### MR. UMRAOMAL PUROHIT

**TRUSTEE** 

C-37, Ground Floor,

South Extension II

New Delhi -110049

### **Functions of NPS Trust**

- To call for any information, report etc. from PFM(s), Trustee Bank and Custodian.
- To issue directions to PFM(s) for protecting the interest of subscribers.
- To appoint a panel of independent auditors to undertake compliance audit.
- To verify that Trustee Bank is performing its functions as per the provisions of the Agreement with NPS Trust.
- To verify that PFM(s) are strictly following the terms and condition of Investment Management Agreement (IMA) with NPS Trust.

### **Central Recordkeeping Agency (CRA):**

National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) has been appointed as the CRA. The recordkeeping, administration and customer service functions for all subscribers of the NPS shall be centralized and performed by the CRA. The CRA shall also provide periodic, consolidated PRAN statements to each subscriber.

### Services provided by CRA to Subscribers

The following services would be provided by CRA to the subscribers:

- > Sending Annual Account statements: Providing subscribers with periodic PRAN account statements detailing the total contribution, time-wise credits into the account and other relevant information.
- > Grievance Redressal report: Subscriber can register grievances through the web interface. Alternatively, subscriber can send grievances through other channels also. CRA registers all complaints in electronic form and sends the status of Grievance/Redressal to Subscriber.
- > Investment Scheme and Switching: Acting on/transmitting instructions of subscribers in respect of :-
  - Investment option selection;
  - · Switching over options;
  - Confirmation report.
- Retirement Account Information to be provided to subscribers:
  - Pension wealth accumulated in their PRA.
  - Amount that can be withdrawn by subscriber in lump sum.
- > Web enabled services: CRA provides subscribers with a web based interface to view detailed history of transactions of PRA. In due course subscriber shall be able to give switching instructions through this interface.

### **NPS Trustee Bank:**

**Bank of India** is functioning as NPS Trustee Bank. It would manage the banking of the Pension Funds in accordance with applicable provisions of the NPS, the schemes the guidelines/notifications, issued by PFRDA, Ministry of Finance, and Government of India from time to time as per applicable law.

### **Functions of Trustee Bank**

- 1. The Bank would interface with Pension Fund Managers for
  - Transfer of funds to the PFM's bank account based on the instructions received from CRA and information flow for same.
  - Receipt of funds from the PFM's bank account to the NPS Trust Bank's account based on the instructions received from CRA and information flow for same.
  - Report on discrepancies, if any, to/from the PFM regarding fund transfer/receipt of funds based on information flow received from PFM/CRA and actual fund transfer.
- 2. The Bank would interface with the CRA for
  - Upload of details of contribution received from Pay and Accounts office in specified file format to CRA.
  - Transfer of funds based on the instructions received from CRA during the settlement process to various entities.
  - Confirmation report by CRA to the bank and the discrepancy report by CRA to the Bank.
  - Electronic Fund Transfer/ Preparation of cheques for disbursement from withdrawal account and forwarding it to CRA.
  - Upload of statement of closing balance of the NPS Trust account with the Bank to the CRA system.
  - Daily reconciliation between balances in various CRA related accounts of the Bank with the details available in CRA system.
  - Downloading of incremental PAO Master file and Transaction id list file.
  - Transfer of funds based on the instructions of CRA to the Bank to Annuity Service Provider and or to the withdrawal account.
- 3. The Bank would interface and provide such reports as may be required by Trustees, Custodian and other entities of the NPS architecture as may be prescribed by PFRDA from time to time.

### Pension Funds (PFs)/Pension Fund Managers (PFMs):

Appointed PFs would manage the retirement savings of subscribers under the NPS. The PFs are required to invest strictly in accordance with guidelines issued by the Government/PFRDA.

The NPS allows you to choose from any one of the following six entities (in alphabetical order) to manage your pension fund:-

- ICICI Prudential Pension Funds Management Company Limited
- IDFC Pension Fund Management Company Limited
- · Kotak Mahindra Pension Fund Limited
- Reliance Capital Pension Fund Limited
- SBI Pension Funds Private Limited
- UTI Retirement Solutions Limited

### Points of Presence (POPs):

Points of Presence (POPs) act as the customer interface for non-Government subscribers/individual citizens who wish to open Permanent Retirement Account (PRA) with Central Recordkeeping Agency (CRA) for the purpose of subscribing to the NPS. You may choose any one of the following service providers (in alphabetical order) appointed as Points of Presence (POPs) by PFRDA:-

		(Toll free number/contact number)
1.	Abhipra Capital Ltd.	1800-3001-7777
2.	Alankit Assignment Ltd.	011-42541234/42541771/1773
3.	Allahabad Bank	033-22104754
4.	Axis Bank Ltd.	1860-425-8888*
5.	Bajaj Capital Ltd.	1800-3000-6000/1800-3000-9000
6.	Central Bank of India	022-22153691
7.	Citibank N.A	1800-180-0123
8.	Computer Age Management Services Pvt. Ltd.	044-30611606/07/08
9.	ICICI Bank Limited	022-28308110
10.	ICICI Securities	#1000 22 1070 /0100 200 1047
11.	IDBI Bank Limited	#1800-22-1070/^180-200-1947
12. 13.	IL & FS Securities Services Ltd.,	022-42493000
13. 14.	India Post	_ 044-28140815
14. 15.	Integrated Securities Ltd. Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited	1800-116-022 from North India/ 1800-226-022
15.	KOLAK MAHIHUTA BAHK LIITILEU	from rest of India
		+912266006022 from abroad
16.	Marwadi shares & Finance Ltd.	0281-2332001/7
17.	Muthoot Group	0201-2332001/7
18.	Oriental Bank of Commerce	1800-180-1235/0124-2340940
19.	Reliance Capital Limited	022-30462300
20.	State Bank of Bikaner and Jaipur	1800-180-6005
21.	State Bank of Hyderabad	040-23387471
22.	State Bank of India	022-22740832/22742821
23.	State Bank of Mysore	1800-425-2244
24.	State Bank of Patiala	1800-180-2010/0172-2648011
25.	State Bank of Travancore	1800-425-5566
26.	Steel City Securities Ltd.	
27.	Stock Holding Corporation of India Ltd.	011-26425335/6/7
28.	Syndicate Bank	
29.	The South Indian Bank Ltd.	1800-843-1800/0484-2351923
30.	Union Bank of India	1800-022-2244
31.	UTI Asset Management Company Limited	022-66786410/1800-221-230
32.	UTI Technologies	022-67931087
33.	Yes Bank	_
34.	Zen Securities Ltd.	
		_

Each of these above mentioned 34 entities would have authorized branches (POP-SPs) for accepting your application and contributions. The POP-SPs shall also be responsible for providing a wide range of services to NPS subscribers, as prescribed by PFRDA from time to time. The complete list of POP-SPs is available at PFRDA website(www.pfrda.org.in), the CRA website (www.npscra.nsdl.co.in) and the website of the concerned POP.

### **Functions of POP**

- 1. To receive the duly filled application form along with the KYC documentation as may be applicable from time to time.
- 2. To verify KYC documents as may be required from time to time.

- 3. To collect and verify contributions that may be received through cash/cheque/Demand Draft/ Electronic Clearing System (ECS).
- 4. To collect/deduct NPS application processing fees and issue of receipt to the Subscriber against the same.
- 5. To submit complete and accepted forms on a daily basis, to CRA/CRA Facilitation Centre (FC).
- 6. To upload the subscriber contribution files into CRA system and simultaneously arrange to transfer the funds into the account of the NPS trust maintained with the Trustee Bank.
- 7. To maintain and report records of all transactions in accordance with the provisions of PML Act, 2002 and Rules framed thereunder, as may be applicable, from time to time.
  - \* Accessible from BSNL/MTNL numbers only. Local call charges will be applicable
  - # For MTNL/BSNL subscribers
  - ^ other than MTNL/BSNL
- 8. Regular subscriber contribution upload
- Verify PRAN card details on the deposit slip, the format for which shall be prescribed by PFRDA.
- Collection and verification of contributions that may be received through cash/cheque/Demand Draft/ Electronic Clearing System (ECS).
- Collection/deduction of contribution processing fee and issue of receipt to the subscriber against the same.
- Uploading subscriber contribution details online into the CRA system, in respect of subscribers for whom clear funds are available, on a daily basis.
- Remit clear funds into the account of the NPS trust maintained with the Trustee Bank on at least T+1 basis.
- · Maintain hard copies of deposit slips.
- 9. Subscriber servicing
- Carry out changes in subscriber details on request by subscriber subject to the conditions stipulated by PFRDA.
- Receiving switch request for change in PFM and/or investment option from subscriber and transmitting the same to CRA.
- Receiving withdrawal requests from subscriber and transmitting the same to CRA. For this purpose, subscriber would put in a withdrawal request to PoP-SP. The subscriber's pension wealth would be credited directly to his bank account by trustee bank, on receiving instructions from CRA, through RTGS/ NEFT or by way of a pay order where his/her personal bank details are not available.
- Attending to subscriber's request for shift to another PoP-SP.
- Any other NPS account related service as may be prescribed by PFRDA from time to time.

### 10. Grievance handling

- Receiving of grievances submitted by the subscriber against PoP / PoP-SP or any other NPS Intermediary
  in the format prescribed by PFRDA and uploading of all grievances in the Central Grievance Management
  System (CGMS) of CRA on a daily basis. The CGMS system of CRA would route the grievances to
  respective NPS intermediaries.
- Receiving grievances raised by the subscriber against PoP/PoP-SP through the CRA call centre/CGMS
  of CRA by accessing the CGMS.

### **Annuity Service Providers (ASPs):**

ASPs would be responsible for delivering a regular monthly pension to the subscriber for the rest of his/her life.

### SERVICES TO SUBSCRIBERS

### 1. Subscriber Services

It is the endeavour of PFRDA / NPS Trust to provide consistently high quality service to NPS subscribers. PFRDA / NPS Trust strive to upgrade the quality of services through implementation of technology and through ensuring quality consciousness amongst all service personnel and associated NPS intermediaries.

### 2. Subscriber Grievances Redressal Mechanism

NPS has a multi-layered Grievance Redressal Mechanism which is easily accessible, simple, quick, fair, responsive and effective.

You have the option of registering grievance/complaint through the following alternatives:

### Call Centre/Interactive Voice Response System (IVR)

You can contact the CRA call centre at toll free telephone number 1-800-222080 and register the grievance. You will have to authenticate yourself through the use of T-pin allotted to you at the time of opening a

Permanent Retirement Account under the NPS. On successful registration of your grievance, a token number will be allotted by the Customer Care representative for any future reference.

### Web based interface

You can register the grievance at the website www.cra-nsdl.co.in with the use of the I-pin allotted to you at the time of opening a Permanent Retirement Account. On successful registration, a token number will be displayed on the screen for future reference.

### Physical forms

You can submit the grievance in a prescribed format to the POP – SP who would forward it to CRA Central Grievance Management System (CGMS). You will have to mention your PRAN as the means of authentication. Upon submission of form with the POP-SP, you will get an acknowledgement receipt. The token number would be emailed to you (if the email id is mentioned), otherwise the same will be emailed to the concerned POP-SP. You can get the token number from the POP-SP upon presentation of the acknowledgement receipt.

#### How to check the status of the Grievance?

You can check the status of the grievance at the CRA website www.cra-nsdl.co.in or through the Call Centre by mentioning the token number. You can also raise a reminder through any one of the modes mentioned above by specifying the original token number issued.

If you do not receive any response within 30 days or are not satisfied with the resolution by CRA, you can apply to the Grievance Redressal Cell (GRC) of PFRDA.

Grievances received by the GRC directly from the subscribers only shall be entertained. GRC shall not entertain any complaints written on behalf of the subscribers by advocates, agents or third parties unless formally authorized by the subscriber.

### Complete address of the GRC of PFRDA is as under:

### **Grievance Redressal Cell**

Pension Fund Regulatory and Development Authority 1st Floor, ICADR Building, Plot No 6, Vasant Kunj, Institutional Area, Phase – II, New Delhi – 110070, Tel no – 011 26897948-49, Fax: 011-26892417, Email: grc@pfrda.org.in

### **Terms & Conditions**

### Confidentiality

The subscriber's personal information shall not be disclosed to a third party (outside NPS) without the express or implied consent of the subscriber. The information may be used internally or for creating awareness (telephonic/written) of new services of NPS. However, there are some exceptions, viz. disclosure of information under compulsion of law, where there is a duty to the public to disclose and where interest of the NPS requires disclosure.

### Subscriber's Duty

Citizenship status

NPS is only for the citizens of India. If the subsciber's citizenship status changes, his/her account under NPS would be closed.

### **Charges and Penalty**

- 1. If the subscriber contributes less than Rs. 6,000 in a year, then
  - He would have to bear a default penalty of Rs 100 per year of default and the account would become dormant.
  - In order to reactivate the account, the subscriber would have to pay the minimum contributions, along with penalty, due for the period of dormancy.
  - A dormant account shall be closed when the account value falls to zero.
- 2. The fee structure may change as may be decided by PFRDA/NPS Trust from time to time.

### **Risks**

### **Investments**

- 1. There are no guarantees on investment. NPS is a defined contribution plan and the benefits would depend upon the amounts of contributions invested and the investment growth up to point of exit from NPS.
- 2. You may seek professional advice to assist you in planning your finances. However, this would be your own decision and PFRDA would not be responsible for any consequences
- 3. Past performance of the Fund Manager does not guarantee future performance of the investment.

- 4. The name of the Fund does not in any manner indicate either the quality of the investment scheme or its future prospects and returns.
- 5. All investments are subject to market risks and there is no assurance or guarantee that the investment objectives shall be achieved.
- 6. Investment involves investment risks such as trading volumes, settlement risk, liquidity risk, default risk including the possible loss of principal.
- 7. Value of your investment in the NPS may go up or down depending upon the forces and factors affecting financial markets in general.
- 8. Tax laws may change, affecting the Return On Investment (ROI).

### **EXPLANATORY NOTE ON SPECIFIC RISKS IN DEBT MARKETS AND CAPITAL MARKETS**

The following is an illustrative list of risks which may be faced by investing in financial markets:

## Risks associated with Debt / Money Markets (i.e. Markets in which Interest bearing Securities or Discounted Instruments are traded)

Credit Risk: Securities carry a Credit risk of repayment of principal or interest by the borrower. This risk
depends on micro-economic factors such as financial soundness and ability of the borrower as also macroeconomic factors such as Industry performance, Competition from Imports, Competitiveness of Exports,
Input costs, Trade barriers, Favorability of Foreign Currency conversion rates, etc.

Credit risks of most issuers of Debt securities are rated by Independent and professionally run rating agencies. Ratings of Credit issued by these agencies typically range from "AAA" (read as "Triple A" denoting "Highest Safety") to "D" (denoting "Default"), with about 6 distinct ratings between the two extremes.

The highest credit rating (i.e. lowest credit risk) commands a low yield for the borrower. Conversely, the lowest credit rated borrower can raise funds at a relatively higher cost.

- Sovereign risk: The Government raises money to meet its Capital and Revenue expenditure by issuing Debt or Discounted Securities. Since payment of interest and principal amount has a sovereign status implying no default, such securities are known as securities with sovereign credit. For domestic borrowers and lenders, the credit risk on such Sovereign credit is near zero and is popularly known as "risk free security" or "Zero-Risk security". Thus Zero-Risk is the lowest risk, even lower than a security with "AAA" rating and hence commands a yield, which is lower than a yield on "AAA" security.
- Price-Risk or Interest-Rate Risk: From the perspective of coupon rates, Debt securities can be classified in two categories, i.e., Fixed Income bearing Securities and Floating Rate Securities. In Fixed Income Bearing Securities, the Coupon rate is determined at the time of investment and paid/received at the predetermined frequency. In the Floating Rate Securities, on the other hand, the coupon rate changes 'floats' with the underlying benchmark rate, e.g., MIBOR, 1 yr. Treasury Bill.

Fixed Income Securities (such as Government Securities, bonds, debentures and money market instruments) where a fixed return is offered, run price-risk. Generally, when interest rates rise, prices of fixed income securities fall and when interest rates drop, the prices increase. The extent of fall or rise in the prices is a function of the existing coupon, the payment frequency of such coupon, days to maturity and the increase or decrease in the level of interest rates. The prices of Government Securities (existing and new) shall be influenced only by movement in interest rates in the financial system. Whereas, in the case of corporate or institutional fixed income securities, such as bonds or debentures, prices are influenced not only by the change in interest rates but also by credit rating of the security and liquidity thereof.

- Reinvestment Risk: Investments in fixed income securities may carry reinvestment risk as interest rates prevailing on the interest or maturity due dates may differ from the original coupon of the bond. Consequently the proceeds may get invested at a lower rate.
- Liquidity Risk: The corporate debt market is relatively illiquid vis-a-vis the Government securities market. There could therefore be difficulties in exiting from corporate bonds in times of uncertainties. Liquidity in an option therefore may suffer. Even though the Government Securities market is more liquid compared to that of other debt instruments, on occasions, there could be difficulties in transacting in the market due to extreme volatility or unusual constriction in market volumes or on occasions when an unusually large transaction has to be put through.
- Prepayment Risk: In the event of prepayments, investors may be exposed to changes in tenor
  and yield. Also, any Charge off's would result in the reduction in the tenor of the Pass through
  Certificates (PTC's).

## Risks associated with Capital Markets or Equity Markets (i.e. Markets in which Equity Shares or Equity oriented instruments are issued and traded)

- Price fluctuations and Volatility: Investments are subject to market and other risks and there can
  be neither a guarantee against loss resulting from an investment in the NPS nor any assurance that
  the objective of the NPS shall be achieved. The NAV of the Units issued under the NPS can go up or
  down because of various factors that affect the capital market in general, such as, but not limited
  to, changes in interest rates, Government policy and volatility in the capital markets. Pressure on the
  exchange rate of the Rupee may also affect security prices.
- Liquidity Risks: Liquidity in Equity investments may be affected by trading volumes, settlement periods and transfer procedures. These factors may also affect the PF's ability to make intended purchases/sales, cause potential losses to the investments and result in the PFMs missing certain investment opportunities.

### **NPS - TIER- II account**

- 1. The facility of Tier II account is available from December 1, 2009 to all citizens of India including Government employees mandatorily covered by NPS, who hold a Tier I account.
- 2. Unlike Tier I which is a non-withdrawable pension account, Tier II is a withdrawable account with an aim to provide a window of liquidity to NPS subscribers. Both Tier I (Pension Account) and Tier II (Savings Account) will be pure retirement savings products, the only distinction being that Tier- I is a non- withdrawable account while Tier-II is a withdrawable account to meet financial contingencies.
- The Tier-II would enable the existing Permanent Retirement Account (PRA) holders to build savings
  over and above the investments in the Tier I pension account. An active Tier I account is a pre-requisite
  for opening a Tier II account.

### **Key features of Tier-II account**

- i. No additional CRA charges will be levied for account opening and annual maintenance in respect of Tier II. However, CRA will charge separately for each transaction in Tier II, the charges being identical to the transaction charge structure in Tier I.
- ii. There will be no limits on the number of withdrawals from Tier II account.
- iii. There will be facility for separate nomination and scheme preference in Tier II.
- iv. The subscriber would have the same choice of PFMs and schemes as in the case of Tier I account in the unorganized sector.
- v. Contributions can be made through any POP/POP-SP.
- vi. There will be facility of one-way transfer of savings from Tier II to Tier I but funds cannot be transferred from Tier I to Tier II.
- vii. Bank details will be mandatory for opening a Tier II account.
- viii. No separate KYC for opening Tier II account will be required; the only requirement is a pre-existing Tier I account.

### **Minimum contribution requirement:**

Minimum contribution at the time of account opening
 Minimum amount per contribution
 Minimum Account Balance at the end of FY
 Minimum number of contributions in a year

Penalty of Rs. 100/- to be levied on the subscriber for not maintaining the minimum account balance and/ or not making the minimum number of contributions.

### **Charge Structure for PoPs:**

Category	A/c opening	Contribution processing
Both Tier I& II (at the same time)	Rs.20.00	Rs.40.00*
Tier I only	Rs.20.00	Rs.20.00
Tier II only (for existing Tier II subscribers)	Rs.20.00	Rs.20.00

<sup>\*(</sup>Rs. 20/- for Tier- I contribution and Rs. 20/- for Tier II Contribution)

# The following table summarizes the main features of Tier-II account vis-a-vis Tier-I account of NPS:

Sr. No.	Functionality	Tier - I	Tier - II
1.	Registration	o Registration through PAOs for Government subscribers and through POP-SP for all other subscribers; KYC to be done by POP-SP.	o Registration only through POP-SP for Government as well as all other subscribers. PRAN card to act as KYC, no separate documentation required.
2.	Contribution	Government Subscribers  o Mandatory contribution through PAO/CDDO for Government Subscribers (10% of Basic+DA per month with matching contribution from Government).	o Voluntary contribution through POP/POP-SP for Government as well as other Subscribers.
		Other Subscribers (all citizens except those mandatorily covered by NPS)	
		<ul> <li>o Minimum one contribution in a year.</li> <li>o Minimum contribution Rs.6000/-p.a.</li> <li>o Minimum contribution Rs.500/-per contribution.</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>o Minimum contribution of Rs.1000/- at the time of account opening.</li> <li>o Minimum contribution @ Rs.250/- per contribution.</li> <li>o Minimum balance of Rs.2000/- at the end of each financial year.</li> </ul>
3.	Scheme Preference	Other subscribers o 3 asset classes and 6 PFMs. o Availability of Auto Choice. Government subscribers. o Default scheme under Tier-1. o 3 PFMs.	All subscribers shall have o Choice of Six PFMs and three assets classes (E,C,G). o Availability of Auto Choice.
4.	Bank Account	o Non-mandatory	o Mandatory
5.	Withdrawals	o No withdrawals allowed during vesting period except as per the norms prescribed by PFRDA.	o No limit on withdrawals
			ne execution of the withdrawal request d amount to the extent of difference in request amount is converted into units

## **Swavalamban Scheme: Operational Guidelines**

### The Scheme and its applicability

 The scheme will be called Swavalamban Yojana. It will be applicable to all citizens in the unorganised sector who join the NPS administered by the Interim Pension Fund Regulatory and Development Authority (PFRDA).

### **Benefits under the Scheme**

2. Under the scheme, Government will contribute Rs. 1000 per year to each NPS account opened in the year 2010-11 and for the next three years, that is, 2011-12, 2012-13 and 2013-14. The benefit will be available only to persons who join the NPS with a minimum contribution of Rs. 1,000 and maximum contribution of Rs. 12,000 per annum.

### **Definitions:**

- 3. **Unorganised sector:** For the purpose of this scheme, a person will be deemed to belong to the unorganised sector if that person:
  - is not in regular employment of the Central or a State Government, or an autonomous body/ public sector undertaking of the Central or state Government having employer assisted retirement benefit scheme, or
  - is not covered by a social security scheme under any of the following laws:
    - Employees' Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952
    - The Coal Mines Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1948
    - The Seamen's Provident Fund Act, 1966
    - The Assam Tea Plantations Provident Fund and Pension Fund Scheme Act, 1955
    - The Jammu and Kashmir Employees' Provident Fund Act, 1961
- 4. All other definitions as given in the NPS offer document will apply to the terms used in this scheme.

### **Eligibility:**

- 5. The scheme will be applicable to all persons in the unorganised sector subject to the condition that the benefit of Central Government contribution will be available only to those persons whose contribution to NPS is minimum Rs.1,000 and maximum Rs. 12,000 per annum, for both Tier I and II taken together, provided that the person makes a minimum contribution of Rs. 1000 per annum to his Tier I NPS account.
- 6. As a special case and in recognition of their faith in the NPS, all NPS accounts opened in 2009-10 will be entitled to the benefit of Government contribution under this scheme as if they were opened as new accounts in 2010-11 subject to the condition that they fulfill all the eligibility criteria prescribed under these guidelines.

### **Funding**

7. The scheme will be funded by grants from Government of India. The grants would be given such that monthly payment in the subscriber accounts would be possible.

### **Operation**

- 8. A person will have the option to join the NPS as an individual as per the existing scheme or through the CRA Lite approved by PFRDA.
- 9. At the time of joining the NPS the subscriber will have to declare whether he/she falls within the definition of unorganised sector as defined in para 3 above and would also declare that his contribution would range between Rs. 1,000 to Rs. 12,000 per annum. If subsequent to opening the NPS account it is found that the subscriber has made a false declaration about his eligibility for the benefits under this scheme or has been wrongly given the benefit of Government contribution under this scheme for whatsoever reason, the entire Government contribution will be deducted along with penal interest as may be specified from time to time.
  - If the status of the subscriber changes to ineligible after joining the NPS, he/she should immediately declare so and the benefit of Government contribution will not accrue to the subscriber's account after the date on which the subscriber becomes ineligible.
- 10. At the end of each financial year the CRA will, by 7th April of the following year, send to the PFRDA details of the NPS accounts opened during the year, showing separately the number of eligible NPS accounts in which the subscriber's contribution has been between Rs. 1,000 and Rs. 12,000. CRA will also send these details with individual PRAN to the Trustee Bank.

### **Exit from NPS**

11. The exit from the Swavalamban Scheme would be on the same terms and conditions on which exit from Tier-I account of NPS is permitted, that is, exit at age 60 with 40% minimum annuitisation of pension wealth and exit before age 60 with 80% minimum annuitisation of pension wealth. However, the exit would be subject to the overriding condition that the amount of pension wealth to be annuitised should be sufficient to yield a minimum amount of Rs. 1,000 per month. If the annuitised pension wealth does not yield an amount of Rs. 1,000 per month, the percentage of pension wealth to be annuitised would be increased so that the pension amount becomes Rs. 1,000 per month, failing which the entire pension wealth would be subject to annuitisation. This minimum pension ceiling may be revised from time to time.

### Miscellaneous

12. PFRDA may permit members of an existing pension scheme to migrate to NPS under such terms and conditions as may be approved by the Government.

### **Removal of Doubts**

13. In case of any doubts on the eligibility, operation of the scheme or any other issue, the Central Government will decide the matter in consultation with PFRDA and the decision of the Central Government will be final.

For PFRDA

Place : New Delhi Date : January 2011

COMPOSITE APPLICATION FORM FOR SUBSCRIBER REGISTRATION	
(*Indicates Mandatory Field) (To avoid mistake(s), please follow the accompanying instructions before filling up the form)	
(10 avoid mistake(3), please follow the accompanying mistactions before mining up the form)	To affix recent Coloured photograph
Receipt No.	(3.5cm x 2.5cm)
(To be filled by POP-SP)	
Permanent Retirement Account Number:	
(To be filled by CRA-FC after PRAN generation)	
Note:	
1. This form is to be used by a subscriber opening a fresh Tier I and Tier II account 2. Pre-existing NPS account holders with a valid PRAN card need to fill up only the NPS Tier II form	
(Annexure UOS-S10)	
Sir/Madam,	Signature/Thumb Impression* Subscriber in black ink
I hereby request that a NPS account be opened in my name and a Permanent Retirement Account Number (PRAN) be a	llotted as per particulars given belo
Section A-Subscriber's Personal Details	
1. Full Name (Full expanded name: Initials are not permitted)	
Please Tick as applicable Shri Smt. Kumari L First Name*	
Middle Name	
Middle Name	
Last Name	
I would like my PRAN card to be printed in HINDI: Yes (If Yes, please provide the details in the annexu	re UOS-SH1 on Page No. 9)
I would like to subscribe for a Tier II Account:  Yes (If Yes, please provide the details on Page N	0.4)
2. Gender* Male Female	
3. Date of Birth 4. PAN	
D D M M Y Y Y Y (for PAN, please refer to Sr. No. 3 o	of the instructions)
D D M M Y Y Y Y (for PAN, please refer to Sr. No. 3 of (Date of birth should be supported by relevant documentary proof).	of the instructions)
(Date of birth should be supported by relevant documentary proof).	of the instructions) (Please tick (√) any one)
(Date of birth should be supported by relevant documentary proof).  5. Category: Government Private Sector Self Employed NRI Others  6. Father's Full Name:	·
(Date of birth should be supported by relevant documentary proof).  5. Category: Government Private Sector Self Employed NRI Others	·
(Date of birth should be supported by relevant documentary proof).  5. Category: Government Private Sector Self Employed NRI Others  6. Father's Full Name:	·
(Date of birth should be supported by relevant documentary proof).  5. Category: Government Private Sector Self Employed NRI Others  6. Father's Full Name: First Name*  Middle Name	·
(Date of birth should be supported by relevant documentary proof).  5. Category: Government Private Sector Self Employed NRI Others  6. Father's Full Name: First Name*	·
(Date of birth should be supported by relevant documentary proof).  5. Category: Government Private Sector Self Employed NRI Others  6. Father's Full Name:  First Name*  Middle Name  Last Name  Last Name	·
(Date of birth should be supported by relevant documentary proof).  5. Category: Government Private Sector Self Employed NRI Others  6. Father's Full Name: First Name*  Middle Name	·
(Date of birth should be supported by relevant documentary proof).  5. Category: Government Private Sector Self Employed NRI Others  6. Father's Full Name: First Name*  Middle Name  Last Name  7. Present Address* (NRIs may please refer to Sr. No. 4 of the instructions): Flat/Unit No, Block no.	·
(Date of birth should be supported by relevant documentary proof).  5. Category: Government Private Sector Self Employed NRI Others  6. Father's Full Name:  First Name*  Middle Name  Last Name  T. Present Address* (NRIs may please refer to Sr. No. 4 of the instructions):  Flat/Unit No, Block no.  Name of Premise/Building/Village	·
(Date of birth should be supported by relevant documentary proof).  5. Category: Government Private Sector Self Employed NRI Others  6. Father's Full Name: First Name*  Middle Name  Last Name  7. Present Address* (NRIs may please refer to Sr. No. 4 of the instructions): Flat/Unit No, Block no.	·
(Date of birth should be supported by relevant documentary proof).  5. Category: Government Private Sector Self Employed NRI Others  6. Father's Full Name:  First Name*  Middle Name  Last Name  T. Present Address* (NRIs may please refer to Sr. No. 4 of the instructions):  Flat/Unit No, Block no.  Name of Premise/Building/Village	·
(Date of birth should be supported by relevant documentary proof).  5. Category: Government Private Sector Self Employed NRI Others  6. Father's Full Name:  First Name*  Middle Name  Last Name  Last Name  7. Present Address* (NRIs may please refer to Sr. No. 4 of the instructions):  Flat/Unit No, Block no.  Name of Premise/Building/Village  Area/Locality/Taluka  District/Town/City	·
(Date of birth should be supported by relevant documentary proof).  5. Category: Government Private Sector Self Employed NRI Others  6. Father's Full Name:  First Name*	·
(Date of birth should be supported by relevant documentary proof).  5. Category: Government Private Sector Self Employed NRI Others  6. Father's Full Name:  First Name*  Middle Name  Last Name  Last Name  7. Present Address* (NRIs may please refer to Sr. No. 4 of the instructions):  Flat/Unit No, Block no.  Name of Premise/Building/Village  Area/Locality/Taluka  District/Town/City	·
(Date of birth should be supported by relevant documentary proof).  5. Category: Government Private Sector Self Employed NRI Others  6. Father's Full Name: First Name*  Middle Name  Last Name  1. Present Address* (NRIs may please refer to Sr. No. 4 of the instructions): Flat/Unit No, Block no.  Name of Premise/Building/Village  Area/Locality/Taluka  District/Town/City  State/Union Territory  Country	·
(Date of birth should be supported by relevant documentary proof).  5. Category: Government Private Sector Self Employed NRI Others  6. Father's Full Name:  First Name*  Middle Name  Last Name  Last Name  NRI Others  NRI Others  Area/Locality/Taluka  District/Town/City  State/Union Territory	·
(Date of birth should be supported by relevant documentary proof).  5. Category: Government Private Sector Self Employed NRI Others  6. Father's Full Name: First Name*	·
(Date of birth should be supported by relevant documentary proof).  5. Category: Government Private Sector Self Employed NRI Others  6. Father's Full Name:  First Name*  Middle Name  Last Name  Last Name  Name of Premise/Building/Village  Area/Locality/Taluka  District/Town/City  State/Union Territory  Country  Pin Code	·
(Date of birth should be supported by relevant documentary proof).  5. Category: Government Private Sector Self Employed NRI Others  6. Father's Full Name: First Name*	·
(Date of birth should be supported by relevant documentary proof).  5. Category: Government Private Sector Self Employed NRI Others  6. Father's Full Name:  First Name*  Middle Name  Last Name  Last Name  Name of Premise/Building/Village  Area/Locality/Taluka  District/Town/City  State/Union Territory  Pin Code  8. Permanent Address*: If same as above, Please Tick Flat/Unit No, Block no.  Name of Premise/Building/Village  else, Flat/Unit No, Block no.	·
(Date of birth should be supported by relevant documentary proof).  5. Category: Government Private Sector Self Employed NRI Others  6. Father's Full Name: First Name*	·

	State	e/Uni	on T	errito	ry																															
	Cou	ntry			Т					$\neg$		_	Т	$\overline{}$	Т							Т	$\top$	Т	Т		Т	Т			Т	Т			7	
		-											_							-																
	Pin (	Code																																		
9.	Phor	ne No	).								_		_									1														
													L																							
							STD	Co	de					Pł	one	e No																				
10	. Mol	bile N	lo.																																	
11	. Ema	ail ID																																		
								+																												
				1																				_ _	7			Г								
12	. Do	you v	vant	to suk	oscrib	e to	o SMS	Al	lerts	(To	be	mac	de a	vaila	ble	late	r, on a	a cha	rge	able I	basi	s):	Yes			_	No	> [				_		ı		
13				ank D	etails	: (0	OPTIO	NΑ	AL - p	lea	ise i	refer	to	Sr. N	lo. 7	of of	the in	struc	ctio	ns)		Sav	ings	A/c				Cı	urre	nt /	A/c					
	Bank	c A/c	Num	ber				Τ											Τ						Τ				Τ			Τ	Т			
	Bank	( Nan	ne			_		_			_		_											_	_			_	_			_	_			7
	L Bank	 c Brar	l nch																												<u> </u>					
		I																																		
	Bank	k Add	Iress	Τ				Т			T							Т	Т		1			<u> </u>	Т			1	_			Т	1		Т	7
	Pin C	Code						Г	$\overline{}$		Т		Т			1																				
	Danl	· NAIC	D C0	طم				_			_					<u>,                                     </u>			_																	
	Dalir	( MIC	K CO	ue				L																												
	IFS c	ode (	Whe	rever	applio	cab	le)															]														
Se	ectic	n B	- Su	ıbscr	iber	's	Non	nin	natio	on	De	etail	ls (	OP	ГΙΟ	NA	L-p	leas	se ı	efe	r to	Sr	. No	8 (	& 9	) c	f th	ıe i	ins	tru	ctio	ons	5)			
																	-																-			
Ivaii	ie oi	the N															2												N. I.							
		19		nee: omine	e						$\top$	First	Na	me*			2nd	Nomi	inee	!				F	rst I	Naı		3rd	No	min	ee					
		19			e III							First	Na	me*	_		2nd	Nomi	inee				_	F	irst I	Naı		3rd	No	min	ee	_	1	_		_
irst N	lame <sup>:</sup>	*			e										e		2nd	Nomi	inee					T			me*		No	min	ee					
irst N	lame <sup>:</sup>	*			e							First Mido			e		2nd	Nomi	inee					T					No	min	ee					
irst N	lame	*			e							Mido	dle	Nam	e		2nd	Nomi	inee					N	lidd	le I	me*		No	min	ee					
irst N	lame	*			e								dle	Nam	e		2nd	Nomi	inee					N		le I	me*		No	min	ee					
irst N	lame	*			e							Mido	dle	Nam	e		2nd	Nomi	inee					N	lidd	le I	me*		No	min	ee					
liddle ast N	e Nar	15 *	st No			nor	)*:					Mido	dle	Nam	e		2nd	Nomi	inee					N	lidd	le I	me*		No	min	ee					
irst N	e Nar	* me Birth	st No	omine		nor	)*:					Mido	Naı	Nam			2nd	Nomi	inee					N	lidd	le I	me*	e	No	min	ee					
diddle ast N	e Name	ne Birth	(In ca	omine	a mir		)*:					Midd	Naı	Nam			2nd	Nomi	inee					N	lidd	le I	Mam me	e	No	min	ee					
irst N	lame e Name lame e of l	19 me Birth	(In ca	ase of	a mir		)*:					Midd	Nai	me	ee		2nd	Nomi						N L L	lidd	le I	Mam me	e	No	min	ee					
irst N	lame e Name lame e of l	19 me Birth	(In ca	ase of	a mir		)*:					Middod Last	Nai	me	ee		2nd	Nomi	inee					N L L	lidd	le I	Nam ninee	e	No	min						
ast No. Date St No. Related	e Nar	1s*  me  BBirth  eee	(In ca	ase of	a mir		)*:					Middod Last	Nai	me	ee		2nd	Nomi	inee					N L L	lidd	le I	Nam ninee	e	No	min	ee					
ast No	e Narrage of learning	1s**  me  BBirth ee  hip w	(In ca	ase of	a mir		)*:					Middod Last	Na No No	Name	ee ee		2nd	Nomi	inee					3	nidd Nast I	le I	Nam ninee	e	No	min						
. Datist No Relast No Percest No.	ame e Narramana e of lomine	15 * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *	((In ca	mined	a mirro	e:						Midde Last	Na No No	Name	ee ee		2nd	Nomi	inee				%	3	nidd Nast I	le I	Nam	e	No	min	ee					
ast No Relast No Percest No.	ame e Narramana e of lomine e of lomine entagemine e inee's:	15 *  me Birth ee Shape s Gua	((In ca	ase of	a mirromine	e:	se of	an	minor		3	Midd Last 2nd 2nd	No No	Nam   me   mine	e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e	uarc	2nd						%	3	1idd	le l	Nam	e				Det	ails			
Aiddle Ai	lame e Nar lame e of lomine attions pmine inee's	15 *  me Birth ee Shape s Gua	((In ca	mined and a second a second and	a mirromine	e:	se of	an			2	Midd Last 2nd 2nd	No No No No	Nam	e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e	uarc							%	3	1idd	le I	Nam Name ninee	e				Det	ails			
Aiddle Ai	lame e Nar lame e of lomine attions pmine inee's	15 *  me Birth ee Shape s Gua	((In ca	mined and a second a second and	a mirromine	e:	se of	an	I		2	Midde Last 2nd 2nd 2nd 12nd 12nd 12nd 12nd 12nd 12	No No No No	Nam	e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e	uarc							%	3	rd N	le I	Nam Name ninee	e				Det	ails			
irst No. Datt St No. Relation No. No. No. No. No. No. No. No. 1 irst No.	e Name  e of I  pmine  attions  mine  interes  st No  lame	1s*  *  Birth wee se s Gua pmine *	((In ca	mined and a second a second and	a mirromine	e:	se of	an	minor		%	Midde Last 2nd 2nd 2nd 12nd 12nd 12nd 12nd 12nd 12	No No No No No No	me mine mine mine mine mine mine mine mi	eeeeeeeee	uarc							%	3 3	ast I	Jon No.	Nam Name ninee	e ee's				Det	ails			9
ast No.  Percest No.  Nom.  1	e of lomine ame entagemine st No lame	1s*  *  Birth wee se s Gua pmine *	((In ca	mined and a second a second and	a mirromine	e:	se of	an	minor		%	2nd 2nd Prirst	No No No No No No	me mine mine mine mine mine mine mine mi	eeeeeeeee	uarc							%	3 3	ast I	Jon No.	me*	e ee's				Det	ails			9
Middle Last No.	lame lame lame lame lame lame lame lame	1s*  *  Birth wee se s Gua pmine *	((In ca	mined and a second a second and	a mirromine	e:	se of	an	minoi		2	2nd 2nd Prirst	No N	mine mine mine Manual M	eeeeeeeee	uarc							%	3 3	ast I	Ile I	Name  Name  ninee	e ee's				Det	ails			

Page 2

**Annexure UOS-S1** 

Section C - Subscriber Scheme Preference (Please refer to the instructions on Page No. 8 for further details):

/11	DENA Colouring	Commander of		Charles	/c . l	DENA
(1).	PFM Selection	tor Active	and Auto	Choice	(Select onl	v one PHVI)

PFM Name (in alphabetical order)	Please tick only one
ICICI Prudential Pension Funds Management Company Limited	
IDFC Pension Fund Management Company Limited	
Kotak Mahindra Pension Fund Limited	
Reliance Capital Pension Fund Limited	
SBI Pension Funds Private Limited	
UTI Retirement Solutions Limited	
(Selection of PFM is mandatory both in Active and Auto Choice. In cas application form shall be summarily rejected).	se you do not indicate a

	. 1						•	
(1	ı	1	In	ves	tm	ent	()r	otion
٧.	٠.	,.				~	$\sim$	,

Active Choice		Auto Choice		(For details on Auto Choice, please refer to the Offer Document)
---------------	--	-------------	--	--

### Note:-

- 1. In case you do not indicate any investment option, your funds will be invested in Auto Choice
- 2. In case you have opted for Auto Choice, DO NOT fill up section (iii) below relating to Asset Allocation. In case you do, the Asset Allocation instructions will be ignored and investment made as per Auto Choice.

### (iii). Asset Allocation (to be filled up only in case you have selected the 'Active Choice' investment option)

Asset Class	E (Cannot exceed 50%)	С	G	Total
% share				100%

### Note:-

The allocation across E, C and G asset classes must equal 100%. In case, the allocation is left blank and/or does not equal 100%, the application shall be rejected by the POP.

### **TIER II DETAILS**

I hereby submit the following details for activation of Tier - II account under NPS.

Ban Ban Ban	nk Na nk Bra	c Numb	avings per*	A/c				Curre		_																					
Ban Ban Ban	nk Na nk Bra nk Ad	me*							ent A	/c																					
Ban Ban Pin	nk Bra	nch*																													
Ban Pin	nk Ad					1 4														_		_	_	_				_	_	_	$\neg$
Pin		dress*																													
Pin		dress*																													
	Code			-																1	1	_	_				Т	_			$\neg$
	Code																														
		*																													
Ban	couc																														
	nk MI	CR Code	e*																												
IFS	code	(Where	ver ap	oplica	able	:)		1	Т	_	<u> </u>	1	Т	Т	Т	Т	1	7													
			•			-		<u> </u>										_				_									
2. Su	ubsc	riber	's No	om	ina	ıtioı	n D	etai	ls (	OPT	IOI	IAL	- p	leas	e r	efei	to	Sr.	No	8 8	9	of t	he	ins	str	uct	ior	ıs)			
If san	ne as	s Tier I	. Plea	ase .	Tick	, Γ		els	e,																						
		Nomin				L			-,																						
st Name		1st Nom	ninee						Fir	st Na	me*		2	nd No	omir	ee				Fir	st Na	ame		I No	mine	ee					
T	П	$\top$	$\Box$	$\overline{}$	$\top$	$\top$	П	$\top$	<del>                                      </del>	T		Т	Т	Т	П		$\top$		$\top$	<del>         </del>	J. 140			$\top$	Т	Т	Т	П	$\top$	$\top$	П
																				1 🗆											
ddle Na	ame			_	_	$\overline{}$			M	ddle T	Nam	<del>-</del>					_		_	Mi	ddle	Nar	ne	_	_	_	_		_	_	
	$\Box$		+	_	+	+	$\vdash$	+	$\dagger \vdash$	$\Box$		-	$\vdash$		H	$\dashv$	+		+	╁		$\dashv$		+				H	+	+	$\forall$
t Name	e								La	st Na	me									La	st Na	me				_					
+	+				_	_				1 1																					
						$\pm$																			_						
Nomin ationshi	nee*				)*:						omine										Non			+							
Nomin ationshi	nee*				)*:																			<u>+</u>							
Nomin ationshi	nee*				)*:																										
Nomin Nomin Nomin entage	nee* iip with	th the N			)*:				2n	d No	mine	2								3 <sup>rd</sup>	Non	nine	9								
ationshi Nomin	nee* iip with	th the N			)*:			%	2n	d No		2							%		Non	nine	9	<u>+</u> - - -							
ationshi Nomin Nomin	nee* ip with	ch the N	lomine	ee:		i a mi	inor):		2n	d No	mine	2							%	3 <sup>rd</sup>	Non	nine	9	<u>+</u> - - -							
ationshi E Nomin Centage t Nomin ninee's (	ip with nee  Share Guard	ch the N	lomine	ee:	se of	f a mi	inor):		2n	d No	mine	e	ardia	n Det	tails				%	3 <sup>rd</sup>	Non	mine	ee nee':	s Gu	ardi	ian [	Deta	ills			
ationshi Nomin Nomin Lentage Nomin ninee's (	ip with nee  Share Guard	e:	lomine	ee:	se of	f a mi	inor):		2n	d No	mine	e	ardia	n Det	tails				%	3 <sup>rd</sup>	Non	mine	ee nee':	s Gu	ardi	ian [	Deta	iils			
Nomin  ationshi Nomin  Nomin  entage Nomin  ninee's (	ip with nee  Share Guard	e:	lomine	ee:	se of	T f a mi	inor):		2n	d No	mine	e	ardia	n Det	tails				%	3 <sup>rd</sup>	Non	mine	ee nee':	s Gu	ardi	ian [	Deta	iils			
ationshi Nomin Nomin Lentage Nomin ninee's (	ip with nee Sharenee Guard	e:	lomine	ee:	se of	f a mi	inor):		2nd 2rd 2nd 2rd 2nd 2rd 2rd 2rd 2rd 2rd 2rd 2rd 2rd 2rd 2r	d No	mine	e e	ardia	n Det	tails				9/6	3rd	Non	mine mine lomi	ee nnee's	s Gu	ardi	ian [	Deta	tills			
ationshi Nomin Nomin Lentage Nomin ninee's (	ip with nee Sharenee Guard	e:	lomine	ee:	se of	f a mi	inor):		2nd 2rd 2nd 2rd 2nd 2rd 2rd 2rd 2rd 2rd 2rd 2rd 2rd 2rd 2r	d No	mine  pmine  minee  me*	e e	ardia	n Det	tails				9/0	3rd	Non	mine mine lomi	ee nnee's	s Gu	ardi	ian [	Deta	tills			
entage Nomin  Ist N  t Name	ip with the see Share see	e:	lomine	ee:	se of	f a mi	inor):		2nc	d No	mine  pmine  ninee  me*	e e	ardia	n Det	tails				%	3rd	Non	mine Iomin Nar	ee nnee's	s Gu	ardi	ian [	Deta	iils			
elationshi st Nomin	nee* iip with	th the N			)*:				2n	d No	mine	2								3 <sup>rd</sup>	Non	nine	9	<u>+</u>							
ationshi t Nomin t Nomin centage t Nomin	ip with the see Share see	e:	lomine	ee:	se of	f a mi	inor):		2nc	d No	mine  pmine  ninee  me*	e e	ardia	n Det	tails				%	3rd	Non  d No	mine Iomin Nar	ee nnee's	s Gu	ardi	ian [	Deta	iils			

Page 5 Annexure UOS-S1

Annexure 003-31						<u>rage 5</u>
PFM Name (in	alphabetical order)			Please tick	only one	
Kotak Mahindi	ra Pension Fund Limited					
Reliance Capita	al Pension Fund Limited					
SBI Pension Fu	nds Private Limited				7	
UTI Retiremen	t Solutions Limited				 ]	
(Selection of PFM i summarily rejected	s mandatory both in Active and	d Auto Choice.	In case you d	o not indicate a cho	oice of PFM, yo	ur application form shall be
(ii). Investment						
Active Choice Note:-	Auto Choice	(For d	details on Aut	o Choice, p <b>l</b> ease re	efer to the Off	er Document)
In case you     Allocation	ou do not indicate any investment ou have opted for Auto Choice, D n instructions will be ignored and ation (to be filled up only in	O NOT fill up se investment mad	ection (iii) belov de as per Auto	w relating to Asset Al Choice.	llocation. In case	
Asset Class	E	C	G			<u> </u>
% share	(Connot exceed 50%)		<b>.</b>	Total 100%		
Note:-				10070		
nterpreted to me or declared to be lo not hold any po understand that to access CRA/NI CRA may, as a Declaration/Unde	and agree that (a) I have read, and the answers entered in of an unsound mind under a re-existing account under NP there would be PFRDA appropriately & Tapproved by PFRDA, ambartaking being signed.	the application the system of	ion are mine. ne time being and Conditio to be bound of the serv	(b) I am a Citizen g in force. (d) I am ns for subscribers by the said terms ices completely	of India. (c) not an undiso on the CRA w and conditior or partially	I have not been found charged insolvent. (e) I rebsite <b>governing I-pin</b> as and understand that
undertake to	e Swavalamban guidelines ar adhere to the prescribed co tral Government contributio	ontribution li	mit of minin	num Rs. 1000/- ar	nd maximum	of Rs. 12000/-, failing
hereby declare t  1. The contr  2. I underst PFRDA/N Law, dire	er the Prevention of Mone hat: ribution paid has been derive and that the PFRDA/NPS That the right to clo ctly or indirectly, by any Coundering in the country.	ed from legally Trust has the se the NPS ac	y declared ar e right to p ccount in cas	nd assessed source eruse my financia e I am found guil	al profile and ty of violating	g the provisions of any
eby declare that th	ne information provided above	is true to the b		e applicant, do owledge & belief.		
Date:		(DD/MM/YYY	Υ)			nature/Thumb sion* of Subscriber

To be filled by POP-SP		
POP-SP Registration Number :		
KYC Compliance :	Yes No	
KYC document accepted for identify proof		
KYC document accepted for address proof		
Document accepted for date of birth proof		
Copy of PAN card submitted :	Yes No	
PAN Compliance :	Yes No	
To be filled by POP-SP		
	Signature of Authori	zed Signatory
	Name :	Place :
POP-SP Seal	Designation :	Date :
[To be filled by CRA - Facilitation Cent	re (CRA-FC)]	
Received by:	CRA-FC Registration Number:	
Received at:	Date :	
Acknowledegment Number (by CRA-FC)		

- a) Form to be filled legibly in BLOCK LETTERS and in BLACK INK only. Please fill the form in legible handwriting so as to avoid errors in your application processing. Please do not overwrite. Corrections should be made by cancelling and re-writing and such corrections should be counter-signed by the applicant.
- b) Each box, wherever provided, should contain only one character (alphabet/number/punctuation mark) leaving a blank box after each word.
- c) The subscriber should affix a recent colour photograph (size 3.5 cm x 2.5 cm) in the space provided on the form. The photograph should not be stapled or clipped to the form. (The clarity of image on PRAN card will depend on the quality and clarity of photograph affixed on the form.)
- d) Signature/Thumb impression (LTI in case of males and RTI in case of females) should only be within the box provided in the form. The subscriber should not sign across the photograph. If there is any make on the photograph such that it hinders the clear visibility of the face of the subscriber, the application shall not be accepted.
- e) Applications incomplete in any respect and/or not accompanied by required documents are liable to be rejected. The application is liable to be rejected if mandatory fields are left blank or the application form is printed back to back.
- f) The subscriber's thumb impression should be verified by the designated officer of the POP-SP accepting the form.
- g) Subscribers are advised to retain the acknowledgement slip signed/stamped by the POP-SP where they submit the application.

Sr No	Item No.	Item Details			Guidelines for Filling the Form
		Subscriber's Personal D	etails - Section	A of Ti	er I and Point No.1 of Tier II
1.	1	Full Name	application is the applicant this application	liable to has bee on from	ne as mentioned in the Proof of Identity failing which the be rejected. If the Proof of identity has a name by which n known differently in the past, than the one provided in then requisite proof should be provided e.g. marriage d copy of name change.
2.	3	Date of Birth	Please ensure document pro		nis matches with the Date of Birth as indicated in the support.
3.	4	PAN			N, please provide copy of the same. Copy of PAN card is ash contribution of Rs. 50,000 and above.
4.	5	Category	bank details v	/ithin In	ld need to furnish an Indian address for communication and dia. Fund transfers by NRIs would be subject to regulatory bed by RBI from time to time and FEMA requirements.
5.	7	Present Address	All future com	municat	ons will be sent to present address.
6.	9, 10, 11	Phone No., Mobile No, & Email ID			n either "Telephone number" or "Mobile number" or "Email ID" e contacted in future for any discrepancy.
7.	13 of Tier I Point No. 1 of Tier II	Bank Details Tier I			re optional, however, if a subscriber mentions any of the CR code), all the bank details shall become mandatory.
,. 	Point No. 1 of Her II	Bank Details Tier <b>II</b>		celled cl	I, bank details are mandatory. The subscribers shall leque, the details of which should match the bank II.
	S	ubscriber's Nomination I	Details - Section	n B of T	ier I and Point No.2 of Tier II
8.	Percent	age Share	2) Subscriber 3) Percentage values shal 4) Sum of per	cannot f e share v I not be a centage	inate a maximum of three nominees. ill the same nominee details more than once. alue for all the nominees must be integer. Decimals/fractional accepted in the nomination (s). share across all the nominees must be equal to 100. If sum of qual to 100, entire nomination will be rejected.
9.	Nominee's G	uardian Details	If a nominee is	a mino	, then nominee's guardian details shall be mandatory.
					, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,
Illustr	ative list of document	s acceptable as proof of i	identity and ac	ldress	
No.	Proof of Identity (Co			No.	Proof of Address (Copy of any one)
1	School Leaving Certifi			1	Electricity bill^
2	Matriculation Certific			2	Telephone bill^
3		d Educational Institution		3	Depository Account Statement^
4	Depository Account S			4	Credit Card Statement^
5 6	Bank Account Statem	ient/Passbook		5	Bank Account Statement/Passbook^
7	Credit Card Water Bill			6	Employer Certificate^
8	Ration Card			7 8	Rent Receipt^
9	Property Tax Assessm	ent Order		9	Ration Card Property Tax Assessment Order
10	Passport	ent Order		10	Passport
11	Voter's Identity Card			11	Voter's Identity Card
12	Driving License			12	Driving License
13	PAN Card				<u>-</u>
14	Certificate of identity	signed by a Member of e Assembly or Municipal C		13	Certificate of address signed by a Member of Parliament or Member of Legislative Assembly or Municipal Councillor or a Gazetted Officer.
	2) You are				be more than six months old on the date of application. f-attested photocopies (Originals will be returned over-

### Subscriber Scheme Preference - Section C of Tier I and Point No. 3 of Tier II

### **Active choice**

- 1. PFM selection is mandatory. The form shall be rejected if a PFM is not opted for.
- 2. Allocation under Equity (E) cannot exceed 50%
- 3. A subscriber opting for active choice may select the available asset ("E", "G", & "C"). However, the sum of percentage allocation across all the selected asset classes must equal 100. If the sum of percentage allocations is not equal to 100%, or the asset allocation table at Sr. No. C (iii) and 3 (iii) respectively is left blank, the application shall be rejected.

### **Auto choice**

4. A subscriber opting for Auto Choice must also select a PFM. The application shall be rejected if the subscriber does not indicate his/her choice of PFM

In case both investment option and the asset allocation at Sr. No. (ii) and Sr. No. (iii) of Section C and point number 3 (ii) and (iii) respectively are left blank, the subscriber's funds will be invested as per Auto Choice

For more details on investment options and asset classes please refer to the Offer Document

### **GENERAL INFORMATION FOR SUBSCRIBERS**

- a) The Subscriber can obtain the status of his/her application from the CRA website or through the respective POP-SP.
- b) For more information

Visit us at http://www.npscra.nsdl.co.in

Call us at 022-24994200

e-mail us at info.cra@nsdl.co.in

Write to: Central Recordkeeping Agency, National Securities Depository Limited, 4th Floor, 'A' Wing, Trade World, Kamala Mills Compound, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel (W), Mumbai - 400 013.

### Details for printing PRAN card in Hindi (please provide the details in Devnagri script):

Please note that the manner in which the names are provided in this annexure will be displayed on the PRAN card. However, date of birth will be printed in English only.

Subscriber's Fu	ıll Name:	
First Name*	:	
Middle Name*	:	
Last Name	:	
Father's Full N	ame:	
First Name*	:	
Middle Name*	:	
Last Name	:	
indicates Manda	ory Field)	
		Signature/Thumb Impression* of Subscriber

Page - 1 Annexure UOS-S10

Request for Activation of Tier-II account under National Pension System (NPS)

To be used by Subscribers having a pre-existing Tier I account under NPS

(To avoid mistake(s), please read the accompanying instructions carefully before filling up the form)

Fo	or POP-SP use:	POP-	SP Rec	gistratio	on No.	:																					
	Receipt N			<u>,</u> 		T			_	П	Т			Τ			T										
	Entered E			' '		Dat	te:				'	Ver	ified B	y: _						Dat	te: _						
	hereby submit	the foll	owing	details	s for ac	tivati	ion of	f Tier	– II a	accou	nt un	der N	PS.														
Pe	ermanent Retire	ment A	Accoun	t Numl	oer (PRA	4N)*:																					
1	. Subscriber	's Naı	me:		/г:	uest NI	lame)						Middl	o Nie						-	l a at	Nam	- /				
,	Bank Data	:l_ / N #			·	Irst in	iame)	)				,	iviidai	ема	ame)					(	Last	ivam	e)				
	. Bank Deta																										
	avings A/c		Curre	ent A/o	c			(	(plea	ase r	efer	to Si	. No.	. i c	of the	e ins	tru	ctio	ns)								
	ank A/c Numbe	er*																								]	
	ank Name*																									]	
	ank Branch*																									]	
Ва	ank Address*																									]	
						<u>                                       </u>												<u> </u>								J	
	Pin Code*					В	ank N	VIICR	Code	e L				<u> </u>													
	FS code (Where																										
	Subscriber					-			-					_	j of			ruc	tion	s)		_					
	o you want NO, please						atior	n as i	ın yo	our	Tier	acco	unt?	L		ΥI	-5				N	O					
				ac can.	DCIO																						
	Name of the 1st No	Nomin ominee	nee:	ac can.	o belo						2no	l Nom	inee									31	rd N	omii	nee		
First I			nee:				First	Nam	e *		2nd	l Nom	inee				Firs	st Na	me*			31	rd N	omii	nee	_	
	1st No Name*		nee:		J J						2nd	l Nom	inee							<u> </u>		31	rd N	omii	nee	_ <del>_</del>	
	1st No		nee:					Nam			2nd	l Nom	inee						me*	e		31	rd N	omii	nee	_ <del>_</del> <del>_</del> <del>_</del>	 
Midd	1st No Name*		nee:				Midd		ame		2nd	l Nom	inee				Mic		Nam	e		31	rd N	omii	nee	_ <del>_</del> <del>_</del>	
Midd	1st No		nee:				Midd	dle Na	ame		2nd	l Nom	inee				Mic	ddle	Nam	e		31	rd N	omii	nee	_ = = = =	
Midd Last I	1st No	ominee	nee:				Midd	dle Na Name	ame		2nd	l Nom	inee				Mic	ddle	Nam               			31	rd N	omii	nee		
Midd Last N Date	1st No Name* le Name Name Of Birth (In case ominee	e of a r	minor)				Midd	dle Na	ame		2nd	Nom	inee				Mic	ddle	Nam			31	rd N	omii	nee		
Midd Last I Date 1st N	1st No	e of a r	minor)				Midd Last	dle Na Name	ame e inee		2nc	I Nom	inee				Mic Las	ddle t Na	Nam               			31	rd N	omii	nee		
Midd Last I Date 1st N	1st No Name*  le Name  Vame  of Birth (In case ominee	e of a r	minor)				Midd Last	Name	ame e inee		2no	I Nom	inee				Mic Las	ddle t Na	Nam			31	rd N	omiı	nee		
Midd Last N Date 1st N Relati	1st No	e of a r	minor)				Midd Last	Name	ame e inee		2no	I Nom	inee				Mic Las	ddle t Na	Nam			31	rd N	omii	nee		
Midd Last N Last N Relati 1st N	1st No Name*  le Name  Vame  of Birth (In case ominee	e of a r	minor)				Midde Last 2nd 2nd	Name	ame e inee		2nc	I Nom	inee				Mid	ddle t Nam	Nam			31	T T		nee		
Midd Last N Date 1st N Relati 1st N Nomir	1st No	e of a r	nee:	*:			Midde Last 2nd 2nd	Name Nomi	inee				dian D	Deta	ils	%	Mid	ddle t Nam	Nam	e	Nom	31				etai	
Midd Last I Date 1st N Relati 1st N Nomir	1st No Name*  le Name  Name  of Birth (In case ominee  ionship with the ominee  ntage Share: ominee	e of a r	nee:	*:		%	Midde Last 2nd 2nd 2nd 2nd	Name Nomi	ame e inee inee 2nd					Deta	ils	%	Mic Lass	ddle t Nam	Nam me ninee	e	Nom					etai	
Midd Last I Date 1st N Relati 1st N Nomir	1st No Name*  le Name  Name  of Birth (In case ominee  ionship with the ominee  intage Share: ominee  nee's Guardian 1st Nominee's	e of a r	nee:	*:		%	Midde Last 2nd 2nd 2nd 2nd	Nami Nomi	ame e inee inee 2nd					Deta	ils	%	Mic Lass	Non Non	Nam me ninee	e	Nom					etai	
Midd Last I Last I Date 1st N Relati 1st N Nomir	1st No Name*  le Name  Name  of Birth (In case ominee  ionship with the ominee  intage Share: ominee  nee's Guardian 1st Nominee's	e of a r	nee:	*:		%	Midde Last Last 2nd 2nd 2nd First	Nami Nomi	ame e iinee Znd					Deta	ils	%	Mic Las:	Non	Nam me ninee	ee 33rd I	Nom					etai	Washington   Was
Date 1st N Relati 1st N Nomir First I Midd	1st No Name*  le Name  Name  Of Birth (In case ominee  ionship with the ominee  ionship with the ominee  ntage Share: ominee  nee's Guardian 1st Nominee's  Name*	e of a r	nee:	*:		%	And 2nd 2nd 2nd First Midd	Nomi Nomi Nomi	inee  2nd e *					Deta	ils	%	3rd 3rd Firs	Non Non Non Non ddle	Nam me ninee minee	ee 33rd I	Nom					etai	
Date 1st N Relati 1st N Nomir First I Midd	1st No Name*  le Name  Vame  of Birth (In case ominee  ionship with the ominee  intage Share: ominee  nee's Guardian 1st Nominee's  Name*	e of a r	nee:	*:		%	And 2nd 2nd 2nd First Midd	Name Nomi	inee  2nd e *					Deta	ils	9%	3rd 3rd Firs	Non	Nam me ninee minee	ee 33rd I	Nom					etai	

Page - 2 **Annexure UOS-S10** 

### 4. Subscriber Scheme Preference (Please refer to Sr. No. k of the instructions for further details):

### (i). PFM Selection for Active and Auto Choice (Select only one PFM)

PFM Name (in alphabetical order)	Please tick only one	
ICICI Prudential Pension Funds Management Company Limited		
IDFC Pension Fund Management Company Limited		
Kotak Mahindra Pension Fund Limited		
Reliance Capital Pension Fund Limited		
SBI Pension Funds Private Limited		
UTI Retirement Solutions Limited		
(Selection of PFM is mandatory both in Active and Auto Choice. In case you do not summarily rejected).	indicate a choice of PFM, ye	our application form shall be
(ii). Investment Option		
Active Choice Auto Choice (For details on Auto	o Choice, please refer t	to the Offer Document)

Note:-

- In case you do not indicate any investment option, your funds will be invested in Auto Choice
- In case you have opted for Auto Choice, DO NOT fill up section (iii) below relating to Asset Allocation. In case you do, the Asset Allocation instructions will be ignored and investment made as per Auto Choice.

### (iii). Asset Allocation (to be filled up only in case you have selected the 'Active Choice' investment option)

Asset Class	E (Cannot exceed 50%)	С	G	Total
% share				100%

#### Note:-

The allocation across E, C and G asset classes must equal 100%. In case, the allocation is left blank and/or does not equal 100%, the application shall be rejected by the POP.

### 5. Declaration & Authorization

I hereby declare and agree that (a) I have read and understood the Offer Document, terms & conditions or the same was interpreted to me, and the answers entered in the application are mine. (b) I am a Citizen of India. (c) I have not been found or declared to be of an unsound mind under any law for the time being in force. (d) I am not an undischarged insolvent. (e) I hold a valid Tier I account under NPS.

Income Tax Act, 1961: Tax benefits are available as per the Income Tax Act, 1961, as amended from time to time.

### Declaration under the Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002

I hereby declare that:

- 1. The contribution paid has been derived from legally declared and assessed sources of income.
- 2. I understand that the PFRDA/NPS Trust has the right to peruse my financial profile and also agree that the PFRDA/NPS Trust has the right to close the NPS account in case I am found guilty of violating the provisions of any Law, directly or indirectly, by any Competent Court of Law, having relation to the laws governing prevention of money laundering in the country.

I declare that the information provided above is true to the	, the applicant, do hereby e best of my knowledge & belief. DD/MM/YYYY)	Signature/Thumb Impression* of Subscriber
To be filled by POP-SP		
	Signature of Autho	rized Signatory
	Name :	Place :
POP-SP Seal	Designation :	Date :

### INSTRUCTIONS FOR FILLING THE FORM

- The form is to be filled by the Subscribers having a PRAN card and Tier 1 account under NPS.

  Form to be filled legibly in BLOCK LETTERS and in BLACK INK only. Please fill the form in legible handwriting so as to avoid errors in your application processing. Please do not overwrite. Corrections should be made by cancelling and re - writing and such corrections should be counter-signed by the applicant.
- Each box, wherever provided, should contain only one character (alphabet/number/punctuation mark) leaving a blank box after each word. The details marked with (\*) are mandatory.
- The Subscriber shall provide copy of PRAN card alongwith the application form.
- Applications incomplete in any respect and/or not accompanied by required documents are liable to be rejected. The application is liable to be rejected if mandatory fields are left blank.
- Government employees (mandatorily covered under NPS) may submit their application to any POP-SP of their choice. The list of POP-SPs rendering services under NPS is available on CRA website http://www.npscra.nsdl.co.in
- Any Indian citizen (other than government employee mandatorily covered under NPS) may submit the application only to the POP-SP through which they have registered with CRA for Tier 1 account.
- Subscribers are advised to retain the acknowledgement slip signed/ stamped by the POP-SP where they submit the application.
- Bank Details:
  - Bank details are mandatory for Tier-II else, account will not be activated. Even if the bank details are same as in Tier II
  - Subscriber shall provide cancelled cheque, the details of which should match with the details provided under Point No.2 on Page 1. b. Even if the bank details are same as in Tier II, the subscriber should provide a 'cancelled cheque'.

#### Subscriber's Nomination Details

	,
Percentage Share	1) Subscriber can nominate a maximum of three nominees. 2) Subscriber cannot fill the same nominee details more than once. 3) Percentage share value for all the nominees must be integer. Decimals/Fractional values shall not be accepted in the nomination(s). 4) Sum of percentage share across all the nominees must be equal to 100. If sum of percentage is not equal to 100, entire nomination will be rejected.
Nominee's Guardian Details	If a nominee is a minor, then nominee's guardian details shall be mandatory.
The manufaction are accepted for	a Tian I aball mat be a set acception like a multi-abla to Tian II. A subscuib anta Tian II is no multi-abla accept a finale

The nomination exercised for Tier I shall not be automatically applicable to Tier II. A subscriber to Tier II is required to make a fresh nomination. In case, you want to retain the same nomination as in Tier I, please select "YES" by putting tick mark in the box.

### **Subscriber Scheme Preference**

#### Active choice

- PFM selection is mandatory. The form shall be rejected if a PFM is not opted for.
- Allocation under Equity (E) cannot exceed 50%
- A subscriber opting for active choice may select the available asset classes ("E", "G", & "C"). However, the sum of percentage allocation across all the selected asset classes must equal 100. If the sum of percentage allocations is not equal to 100%, or the asset allocation table at Point No. 4 (iii) is left blank, the application shall be rejected.

- A subscriber opting for Auto Choice must also select a PFM. The application shall be rejected if the subscriber does not indicate his/her choice of PFM
- In case both investment option and the asset allocation at Point No. 4 (ii) and Point No. 4 (iii) are left blank, the subscriber's funds will be invested as per Auto Choice

For more details on investment options and asset classes, please refer to the Offer Document.

### GENERAL INFORMATION FOR SUBSCRIBERS

- The Subscriber can obtain the status of his/her application from the CRA website or through the respective POP-SP.
- For more information

Visit us at http://www.npscra.nsdl.co.in

Call us at 022-24994200

e-mail us at info.cra@nsdl.co.in

Write to: Central Recordkeeping Agency, National Securities Depository Limited, 4th Floor, 'A' Wing, Trade World, Kamala Mills Compound, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel (W), Mumbai - 400 013.

### Request for Activation of Tier-II account under National Pension System (NPS)

To be used by Subscribers having a pre-existing Tier I account under NPS but have not been issued a PRAN Card (To avoid mistake(s), please read the accompanying instructions carefully before filling up the form)

POP-SP Registration No.		
	<u> </u>	
Receipt No.:		
Entered By : D	Date: Verified By:	Date:
I hereby submit the following details	for activation of Tier – II account under N	IPS.
Permanent Retirement Account Numbe	r (PRAN)*:	
1. Subscriber's Full Name - Full expa	nded name: Initials are not permitted. (P	lease refer to Sr. No. j of the instructions)
Please Tick as applicable Shri First Name*	Smt. Kumari	
Middle Name		
Last Name		
2. Subscriber's Present Address*: (P Flat/Unit No, Block no*	lease refer to Sr. No. j of the instructions)	
Name of Premise/Building/Village		
Area/Locality/Taluka		
State / Union Territory *		
Country *		
Pin Code	⊥l ngs A/c ☐ Current A/c ☐ (Please	refer to Sr. No. g of the instructions)
	ngs A/c Current A/c (Please	refer to Sr. No. g of the instructions)
Bank A/c Number*		
Bank Name*		
Bank Name* Bank Branch*		
Bank Branch*		
Bank Branch* Bank Address*	Bank MICR Code	
Bank Branch*	Bank MICR Code	
Bank Branch*  Bank Address*  Pin Code*  IFS code (Wherever applicable)		e instructions)
Bank Branch*  Bank Address*  Pin Code*  IFS code (Wherever applicable)  4. Subscriber's Nomination Details (Name of the Nominee:	OPTIONAL - please refer to Sr. No. h of th	•
Bank Branch*  Bank Address*  Pin Code*  IFS code (Wherever applicable)  4. Subscriber's Nomination Details ( Name of the Nominee:  1st Nominee	OPTIONAL - please refer to Sr. No. h of th	3rd Nominee
Bank Branch*  Bank Address*  Pin Code*  IFS code (Wherever applicable)  4. Subscriber's Nomination Details (Name of the Nominee:	OPTIONAL - please refer to Sr. No. h of th	•
Bank Branch*  Bank Address*  Pin Code*  IFS code (Wherever applicable)  4. Subscriber's Nomination Details ( Name of the Nominee: 1st Nominee  First Name*	OPTIONAL - please refer to Sr. No. h of th  2nd Nominee  First Name *	3rd Nominee  First Name*
Bank Branch*  Bank Address*  Pin Code*  IFS code (Wherever applicable)  4. Subscriber's Nomination Details ( Name of the Nominee:  1st Nominee	OPTIONAL - please refer to Sr. No. h of th	3rd Nominee
Bank Branch* Bank Address*  Pin Code*  IFS code (Wherever applicable)  4. Subscriber's Nomination Details ( Name of the Nominee: 1st Nominee  First Name*  Middle Name	OPTIONAL - please refer to Sr. No. h of th  2nd Nominee  First Name *  Middle Name	3rd Nominee  First Name*  Middle Name
Bank Branch*  Bank Address*  Pin Code*  IFS code (Wherever applicable)  4. Subscriber's Nomination Details ( Name of the Nominee: 1st Nominee  First Name*	OPTIONAL - please refer to Sr. No. h of th  2nd Nominee  First Name *	3rd Nominee  First Name*
Bank Branch* Bank Address*  Pin Code*  IFS code (Wherever applicable)  4. Subscriber's Nomination Details ( Name of the Nominee: 1st Nominee  First Name*  Middle Name	OPTIONAL - please refer to Sr. No. h of th  2nd Nominee  First Name *  Middle Name	3rd Nominee  First Name*  Middle Name
Bank Branch* Bank Address*  Pin Code*  IFS code (Wherever applicable)  4. Subscriber's Nomination Details ( Name of the Nominee: 1st Nominee  First Name*  Middle Name	OPTIONAL - please refer to Sr. No. h of th  2nd Nominee  First Name *  Middle Name	3rd Nominee  First Name*  Middle Name

Relatio		with t	he	No	mi	nee	:			_																																												_
1st No	minee	1 1		- 1	_			_		_				2	2no	d N	or	min	ee		_	_		_	_				1	_		_	_	4	3'	a N	lor	nir	nee	<u> </u>			_	_	_	$\neg$		_	$\overline{}$	_	_		_	4
	++	+	+	+	_			t	+	+	$\dashv$		$\vdash$	┪╏		╁	t	+			+	+			$^{+}$	+			+	+		╁	+		H	$^{+}$	-		+	+			+	+	+	+	-	$\vdash$	+	+	-		H	1
Percent	tage Sh	nare:																																•																				_
1st No	minee												9	%	2n	d N	10	min	ee	ļ.													'	%	3	rd	No	m	ine	e													9	%
Nomine 1	ee's Gu Ist Nor									a r	min	or)	:					2	nc	l N	lon	nir	nee	e's	Gu	ıar	dia	an	Det	tai	ils									3r	d I	Vor	min	iee'	's (	Gua	ırd	iar	ı D	eta	ails			
First N	ame*									_					Firs	st N	laı	me	*																Fi	rst	Ná	am	e*					_	_		_	_	_	_			_	
		+	4	-	_			l	-	4				4		-	+	_			-	4			+	4			+	4		╀	4		L	4	4		-	4			-	╄	+	$\dashv$	_	┡	+	4			Ļ	_
Middle	Name	<u></u>			_						_	_	<u> </u>	┨   	Mie	ddl	e l	Nan	ne					_		I_		_							N	lide	dle	N	am	e						_	_	<u> </u>		ㅗ			_	-
				4				L		$\exists$				ĬI.			ļ					1				1									L					1				Į	Ŧ	$\operatorname{\Box}$			Į	Į			Į	_
Last N	ame							<u> </u>		ᆚ			<u> </u>	┨╏	Las	t N	lar	ne me							<u> </u>			_				<u> </u>	1		L	st	Na	am	e				<u> </u>	丄		ㅗ	_	L	上	ㅗ			L	-
										$\exists$				] [		Ï	Ĩ	Ĭ				1								1			I		Ē	Ĭ			Ĭ	I				I	I	コ			I	I			I	
								<u> </u>		_			<u> </u>	_		<u> </u>					<u> </u>												_						<u> </u>				<u> </u>				_	<u> </u>		ㅗ			上	ل
	Sub:												-																		uc	tic	on	ıs 1	foi	fı	ur	th	er	d	et	ail	s):	:										
<u> </u>	PFM N	lame	) (	in a	Iр	ha	be	eti	cal	С	rd	er	)																Τ.	Ρl	ea	ase	e t	ick	( 0	nl	у	or	<u>ie</u>	1														
T <sup>1</sup>	CICI F	rude	en	tial	Р	ens	io	n	Fu	no	ds	M	ana	ag	er	ne	'n	t C	or	np	oar	٦y	L	im	ite	ed								Γ	1																			
T	DFC F	ensi	or	ı Fu	ını	d N	/la	ın	age	en	nei	nt	Co	m	ра	any	/	Lim	nit	ec	k														Ī																			
k	Cotak	Mal	nir	ndra	a F	Pen	si	or	ı Fı	Jr	nd	Lir	nit	ec	ł																																							
F	Relian	ce C	ap	ital	Р	ens	sic	n	Fu	ın	d I	_in	nite	ed																																								
S	BI Pe	nsio	n I	Fun	ds	Pr	iv	at	e L	.ir	nit	ed																																										
ι	JTI Re	etire	ne	ent	Sc	olut	ic	n	s L	im	nite	ed																						Г	1																			
	electio mmari				ma	anda	ato	ory	/ bc	th	in	Ac	tiv	e a	nd	ΙAι	ut	o Cl	ho	ice	e. Ir	10	as	e y	/OL	ı d	0 1	no	t in	ıdi	ica	ite	а	chc	oice	0	f P	FΝ	1, y	 /OI	ur	арі	olic	atio	on	for	m	sh	ıall	be	е			
<u>(ii</u>	<u>). Inv</u>	<u>estn</u>	<u>ie</u>	nt (	<u>)</u>	otic	n																																															
Ad	tive	Choi	ce	. [				4	\u1	o	Cł	ho	ice	, [					(	Fo	or	de	eta	ail	s c	on	Α	.u1	to	Cl	hc	oic	e,	рl	ea	se	re	efe	er :	tc	t	he	0	ffe	er	Do	ocı	uπ	ne	nt	)			
No	ote:-													l																																								
	•	In c		_										_											-																													
	•	In c																																														or	1. I	n	ca	se		
<u>(ii</u>	i). As	•																					_																									<u>n)</u>						
							_			E																		T						7														_						
	Asse		SS	$\dashv$	(	Ca	nr	10	t e	X	ee	ed	50	%)	)			C							G —			L			ota																							

### Note:-

• The allocation across E, C and G asset classes must equal 100%. In case, the allocation is left blank and/or does not equal 100%, the application shall be rejected by the POP.

### 6. Declaration & Authorization

I hereby declare and agree that (a) I have read and understood the Offer Document, terms & conditions or the same was interpreted to me, and the answers entered in the application are mine. (b) I am a Citizen of India. (c) I have not been found or declared to be of an unsound mind under any law for the time being in force. (d) I am not an undischarged insolvent. (e) I hold a valid Tier I account under NPS.

Page - 3 Annexure UOS-S11

Income Tax Act, 1961: Tax benefits are available as per the Income Tax Act, 1961, as amended from time to time.

### Declaration under the Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002

I hereby declare that:

- The contribution paid has been derived from legally declared and assessed sources of income.
   I understand that the PFRDA/NPS Trust has the right to peruse my financial profile and also agree that the PFRDA/NPS Trust has the right to close the NPS account in case I am found guilty of violating the provisions of any Law, directly or indirectly, by any Competent Court of Law, having relation to the laws governing prevention of money laundering in the country.

declare that the information provided above is true to the declare that the information provided above is true to the declare that the information provided above is true to the declare that the information provided above is true to the declare that the information provided above is true to the declare that the information provided above is true to the declare that the information provided above is true to the declare that the information provided above is true to the declare that the information provided above is true to the declare that the information provided above is true to the declare that the information provided above is true to the declare that the information provided above is true to the declare that the information provided above is true to the declare that the information provided above is true to the declare that the declared that the decl	, the applicant, do hereby o the best of my knowledge & belief. ]	Signature/Thumb Impression* of Subscriber
To be filled by POP-SP		
	Signature of Authoriz	ed Signatory
	Name :	Place :
DOD SD Soal	Designation :	_ Date D D M M Y Y
POP-SP Seal		

### INSTRUCTIONS FOR FILLING THE FORM

- The form is to be filled by the Subscribers who have been registered in NPS without a PRAN card.
- Form to be filled legibly in BLOCK LETTERS and in BLACK INK only. Please fill the form in legible handwriting so as to avoid errors in your application processing. Please do not overwrite. Corrections should be made by cancelling and re-writing and such corrections should be counter-signed by the applicant.
- Each box, wherever provided, should contain only one character (alphabet/number/punctuation mark) leaving a blank box after each word. The details marked with (\*) are mandatory.
- Applications incomplete in any respect and/or not accompanied by required documents are liable to be rejected. The application is d) liable to be rejected if mandatory fields are left blank.
- Government employees may submit their application to any POP-SP of their choice. The list of POP-SPs rendering services under NPS is available on CRA website http://www.npscra.nsdl.co.in
- Subscribers are advised to retain the acknowledgement slip signed/ stamped by the POP-SP where they submit the application. f)

#### Bank Details:

- a. Bank details are mandatory for Tier-II else, account will not be activated.
- b. Except MICR & IFS code, all the bank details shall be mandatory.
- c. Subscriber shall provide cancelled cheque, the details of which should match with the details provided under Point No.3 on Page 1.

### Subscriber's Nomination Details

Percentage Share	1) Subscriber can nominate a maximum of three nominees. 2) Subscriber cannot fill the same nominee details more than once. 3) Percentage share value for all the nominees must be integer. Decimals/Fractional values shall not be accepted in the nomination(s). 4) Sum of percentage share across all the nominees must be equal to 100. If sum of percentage is not equal to 100, entire nomination will be rejected.
Nominee's Guardian Details	If a nominee is a minor, then nominee's guardian details shall be mandatory.
A subscriber to Tier II is requi	red to make a fresh nomination. The nomination exercised for Tier II shall not be automatically

applicable to Tier I.

### **Subscriber Scheme Preference**

#### Active choice

- PFM selection is mandatory. The form shall be rejected if a PFM is not opted for.
- Allocation under Equity (E) cannot exceed 50%
- A subscriber opting for active choice may select the available asset classes ("E", "G", & "C"). However, the sum of percentage allocation across all the selected asset classes must equal 100. If the sum of percentage allocations is not equal to 100%, or the asset allocation table at Point No. 5 (iii) is left blank, the application shall be rejected.

#### Auto choice

- A subscriber opting for Auto Choice must also select a PFM. The application shall be rejected if the subscriber does not indicate his/her choice of PFM
- In case both investment option and the asset allocation at Point No. 5 (ii) and Point No. 5 (iii) are left blank, the subscriber's funds will be invested as per Auto Choice

For more details on investment options and asset classes, please refer to the Offer Document.

#### Instruction to Government Officers who are not IRA Compliant j)

Government officers who are not IRA compliant, i.e., those who have not been issued a PRAN card may either produce a letter from their Head of Office as per the format below OR submit documents relating to proof of identity and proof of address as mentioned in instruction (k):

SPECIMEN LETTER TO BE ISSUED BY Head of Office (On official stationary)  TO WHOMSOEVER IT MAY CONCERN	
This is to certify that Shri/Shmt (name of employee) is an employee of (name of office) He/She has been allotted PRAN No: (PRAN)  His/Her date of birth as per official records is (date in dd/mm/yyyy) The permanent address of the employee is as under.	Recent Photograph
Flat/Unit No, Block no Name of Premise/Building/Village Area/Locality/Taluka District/Town/City State / Union Territory Country Pin Code	
Place: Date: with Office S	Signature Geal/Stamp
(Head	l of Office)

k) Illustrative list of documents acceptable as proof of identity and address

No.	Proof of Identity (Copy of any one)	No.	Proof of Address (Copy of any one)
1	School Leaving Certificate	1	Electricity bill^
2	Matriculation Certificate	2	Telephone bill^
3	Degree of Recognized Educational Institution	3	Depository Account Statement^
4	Depository Account Statement	4	Credit Card Statement^
5	Bank Account Statement / Passbook	5	Bank Account Statement / Passbook^
6	Credit Card	6	Employer Certificate^
7	Water Bill	7	Rent Receipt^
8	Ration Card	8	Ration Card
9	Property Tax Assessment Order	9	Property Tax Assessment Order
10	Passport	10	Passport
11	Voter's Identity Card	11	Voter's Identity Card
12	Driving License	12	Driving License
13	PAN Card		Certificate of address signed by a Member of
14	Certificate of identity signed by a Member of Parliament or Member of Legislative Assembly or Municipal Councillor or a Gazetted Officer.	13	Parliament or Member of Legislative Assembly or Municipal Councillor or a Gazetted Officer.
	application.	. ,	uld not be more than six months old on the date of

### **GENERAL INFORMATION FOR SUBSCRIBERS**

- The Subscriber can obtain the status of his/her application from the CRA website or through the respective POP-SP.
- For more information

Visit us at http://www.npscra.nsdl.co.in Call us at 022-24994200

e-mail us at info.cra@nsdl.co.in

Write to: Central Recordkeeping Agency, National Securities Depository Limited, 4th Floor, 'A' Wing, Trade World, Kamala Mills Compound, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel (W), Mumbai - 400 013.

## National Pension System (NPS) NPS Contribution Instruction Slip (NCIS) - All fields mai

Subscriber I		ibution instruction s	onp (recis)	neids marked with are ma	accory.
Subscriber's	PRAN*:			/ New Application	on
Name of th	e Subscriber*	:			
Are you a G Phone No/	iovt. Employee Mobile No.: _	e with date of joining pre-1-	1-2004 (See instruct		es No
Payment De	etails*:				
Cheque/ DD/Cash	Cheque/DD No.	Bank Name, Branch & City (mandatory in case of Cheque/DD)	Amount to be invested in Tier 1	Amount to be invested in Tier 2	Total Amount to be invested
	<b>be invested</b> : words):				
<ol> <li>Pre 1<sup>st</sup> Jan,</li> <li>Please quo the cheque/DI</li> <li>Cheque/DI crossed A, submitting</li> <li>Copy of PA</li> <li>Each contr</li> </ol>	2004 Govt. emplo 2004 Govt. emplo te your 12 digit Pe/DD. In case of b. O should be draw (c payee only. F the Cheque. N should be encloibution i.e. contril	byees can contribute only for Tier 2 byees, can contribute for both Tier RAN allotted by Central Recordkeep new application, please mentioned in in favor of "POP (Name of the PC Please ensure sufficient balance is bosed in case of cash contribution or boution under Tier I and Tier II will for details of the charge structure,	r 1 and Tier 2 vide this NCIS ing Agency (CRA) also on the re "New Application" on the revers DP) Collection Account - NPS Tr available in the bank account f Rs. 50,000 and above, be treated as a separate tr	e of the  ust" and t, before  Impres:	ture/Left Thumb sion of Subscriber
at www.p	frda.org.in	or details of the charge structure,	picase refer to the TTNDA	oner document	
=	eived by:		POP-SP Registrat	ion Number:	
	•		_	Time Stamp:	
Red (To be p	eipt Number provided by PC	DP-SP)			
			IS Acknowledgement to the	Subscriber	
POP-SP Regi	stration Numb	er:	_ PRAN:		
Name of the	Subscriber:		Da	te:// Time S	tamp: ———
Cheque/DD	Number:	Cheque/DD da	ate:	Drawn on:	
Receipt Num To be provid	ber ded by POP-SP	)			
. Amount re	eceived Tier I:	Rs.	2. Amount	received Tier II:	Rs.
. POP Regis	tration Charge	es (one time) Rs.	4. POP Tra	nsaction Charges:	Rs.
. Service Tax	κ (as applicable	e): Rs.			
5. Amount ir [(1+2)-(3+		Rs.	Siar	nature/Stamp of POP/Po	OP-SP/Place
ach contributio	n i e contribution	under Tier I and Tier II will be treate			<u> </u>

Withdrawal form for Tier II account under NPS (Please fill all the details in CAPITAL LETTERS & in BLACK INK only.)					
For POP-SP use:					
POP-SP Registration No.:					
Receipt No.:					
Entered By:	Date:				
Verified By: Date:					
Date : Acknowledgement Nu (Generated by N					
Sir/Madam,	,				
I hereby submit withdrawal request for Tier II and give below the necessary de	etails:				
,					
PRAN *:					
Name of the Subscriber *:					
Type of withdrawal* (Please Tick):					
Partial Withdrawal Amount to be withdrawn:					
(In Figures)					
Amount in words :					
Complete Withdrawal					
Preferred Mode of Withdrawal* ECS (Refer to Instruction No. 7)	Account Payee Cheque				
I, the a	pplicant, do hereby declare that				
Information stated above is true to the best of my information & belief.					
Date:					
D D M M Y Y Y	Signature/ Thumb Impression of the				
	Subscriber				
TO BE FILLED/ATTESTED BY POP-SP					
Rubber Stamp of the POP-SP	Name and Signature of the POP-SP				

### Instruction for filling the Form:

- $1. \hspace{1.5cm} \textbf{All fields marked with * are mandatory, All dates should be in DDMMYYYY format,} \\$
- $2. \qquad \text{The Subscriber shall submit the application only to the \ POP-SP with which they are currently registered with CRA for Tier 11}$
- 3. Before submitting the withdrawal form, Subscriber should ensure that the Subscriber's bank account is active. If he/she intends to make any correction in the details he/she can submit Subscriber Details Change Request and should get all the details updated prior to submission of withdrawal request form.
- $4. \hspace{0.5cm} \text{In case of complete with drawal, the total contributions under Tier II will be remitted to the Subscriber.} \\$
- 5. Partial withdrawal request shall be rejected if sufficient balance is not available in Subscriber's Tier II account.
- 6. Withdrawal amount received after the execution of the withdrawal request can be different from the requested amount to the extent of difference in NAV of two different days.
- 7. (i). In case of ECS, the amount shall be directly credited to the bank account of the subscriber as per details available in the CRA database
  - (ii). In case of account payee cheque, it shall be sent to the present address of the subscriber registered in the CRA. The Trustee Bank shall deduct the postal charges, as applicable, and forward the cheque for the net amount to the subscriber.



Pension Fund Regulatory and Development Authority 1st Floor, ICADR Building, Plot No.6, Vasant Kunj Institutional Area, Phase - II, New Delhi - 110070. Tel: (011) 26897948